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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan
(Appointed as the chairman of the Company on
30 April 2009)

Mr. Mark Damion Go
(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as the alternate

director to Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan)

Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred
(Appointed on 30 April 2009)

Mr. Kwok Ho On, Anthony
(Appointed on 12 February 2010 as
the alternate director to
Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred)

Mr. Ahn Do I
(Appointed on 26 June 2009)

Mr. Thanh Hung Thai
(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as
executive director and re-designated
as non-executive director on
12 February 2010 and resigned on 7 May 2010)

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Tsuen Tai Chi, Andy
(Resigned on 30 April 2009)
Mr. Thanh Hung Thai
(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as
executive director and re-designated
as non-executive director on
12 February 2010 and resigned on 7 May 2010)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Li Man Nang
Mr. Jeffrey John Ervine
Mr. Choi Yong Seok
Mr. Leung Chi Hung
(Appointed on 30 April 2009)

EEg

BITES:

Antonio lbrahim Tambunan?t &
(RZBEZFNFWA=+HEZER
KR E]FE)

Mark Damion Go’t 4
(R=ZFBZENFA=FIIHEZ TS
Antonio lbrahim Tambunan’t 4,2
ErzE#£)

BOT08 55 &
(RZBZFENFINA=+HEZF)

BRI R FELE
(RZBE—FF-HAT —HEZER
HifaEEtEc BEHTESE)

TiEREE
(R=ZBZEANFNA=ZFNAEZ(F)
B IE S A
(R-ZBFEZENFHA = HAEZ 5
BITEFRR-_F—FTF= ﬁ+ =i
FERBIFHTEFEIRZ TF
AA+HEF)

FHITES:
2HRELT
(R=ZZFZANFMA=~+HEHT)
B IE S A
(R-ZBFEZENFHA = HAEZ 4
BITEFRR-_F—FTF= ﬁ+ =i
HERIFHTEFIR -_FE—FF
AA+HEHF)

BYKHITES:

FEREE

Jeffrey John Ervinest &

EREEAE
REWSTE
(RZBZFENFINA=+HEZF)

TEMUJIN INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED ¢ Annual Report 2010



COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Chiu Hung, Alex

INVESTMENT MANAGER

United Gain Investment Limited

DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT

MANAGER
Mr. Lum Chor Wah, Richard

Mr. Lau Chi Yiu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Asia) Limited

Industrial Bank of Korea

AUDITORS
HLM & Co.

Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS
Hong Kong Law

Michael Li & Co

Cayman Islands Law

Maples and Calder Asia

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS

Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 705

Grand Cayman

KY1-1107

Cayman Islands

Z HEBREAERALLTHF-.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEEH

DEME
B 13 5

REKE
BEREBRAR

REREBEZES

RS
Bl

FTEARRT
E LOELRTERAR

PR TEET(EMBRAA
FRE T RIRTT

3Ll
B4 & 5t 513
HE BT

EEER
B L E
TR ESAT

HSHEXE
Maples and Calder Asia

ROBFERAR

Butterfield Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P. O. Box 705

Grand Cayman

KY1-1107

Cayman Islands

[
A
|
L]
o
Hh



CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

BRANCH REGISTRARS

Union Registrars Limited

18/F

Fook Lee Commercial Centre
Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O. Box 309

Ugland House
South Church Street
George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands British West Indies

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Unit 703, 7th Floor

100 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/temujin

STOCK CODE
204

ROBFELDE
GEBHFELBERAR
s

1T

5% 508335 R R E S
BAIEED O

1812

AfRER

P. O. Box 309
Ugland House
South Church Street
George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands British West Indies

FTEEEME
BB

EFKREFR 1005
718703 %

4t

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/temujin

R 424X 5%

204

TEMUJIN INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED ¢ Annual Report 2010



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Board comprises the following persons:

Executive Directors

Mr. Antonio Ilbrahim TAMBUNAN (“Mr.
Tambunan”)

Mr. Tambunan, aged 41, joined the Company as
an executive director on 29 January 2009 and was
appointed as the Chairman of the Company on
30 April 2009. Mr. Tambunan holds a Bachelor’s
Degree majored in International Relations from
Boston University and a Master’'s Degree in
Business Administration from Boston University.
After his graduation, Mr. Tambunan joined B&S
Tour and Travel Company Limited in 1991 as a
Marketing Executive to provide account services
for corporate clients. Thereafter, Mr. Tambunan
joined SBC Warburg Dillon Read in 1997 as an
Associate and was involved in equity/equity-linked
corporate finance transactions, formulation of
financial models, due diligence and investment
banking research. Later, Mr. Tambunan joined
Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Limited in
Hong Kong as a Manager. Mr. Tambunan was
mainly involved in financial restructuring and the
recovery process for clients after the Asian financial
crisis. Mr. Tambunan served Deutsche Bank as a
Vice President in Hong Kong in 2000 to manage a
team of analysts overseeing regional coverage of
emerging technologies. Leaving Deutsche Bank,
Mr. Tambunan joined bx.com as the Chief Financial
Officer mainly involved in accounting and budgeting
operations. In 2005 Mr. Tambunan joined Bear
Stearns Company in Hong Kong as a Senior Analyst
involved in the management of a team of analysts
covering the online gaming sector. Starting from
April 2007, Mr. Tambunan served as the Chief
Investment Officer in Gigamedia Limited and was
responsible for the global investments in the video

games industry.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

KRAEERRERKERE

Mr. Mark Damion GO (“Mr. Go")

Mr. Go, aged 41, was appointed as the alternate
director to Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan, an
executive director of the Company on 24 April
2009. Mr. Go holds a Bachelor's Degree from
University of California, Berkeley where he double
majored in Economics and Asian Studies. After
his graduation, Mr. Go joined Hill and Knowlton
as a Consultant servicing for telecommunication
and media accounts. Thereafter, Mr. Go joined
Wheelock NatWest Corporate Finance as an
Associate focusing on Asian telecommunication and
media deals. Later, Mr. Go joined SBC Warburg
Dillion Read as a Telecom Analyst covering
telecommunications sector in Greater China.
Mr. Go later served Jardine Fleming Securities as
its Greater China Telecom Analyst covering the
telecommunication industries within PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan. Mr. Go was also responsible
for training and managing a team of analysts for
New Media and Internet Analysts from 1998 to
2000. Upon leaving Jardine Fleming Securities,
Mr. Go formed E-PartsCenter (HK) Limited as
the Founder and Director and mainly involved in
business development of regional strategic alliances/
partnerships with auto parts manufacturers and
distributors. Thereafter, Mr. Go joined Bank of
China International Equity Research in Hong Kong
as a Vice President and Analyst involved in the
management of a team of analysts covering the
China/Hong Kong telecommunication services/
equipment sector. Following, Mr. Go joined Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation in 2004
as a spokesperson in-charge of investor relations.
Starting from April 2006, Mr. Go served as the
Head of Institutional Research in KGI Asia (Hong
Kong) Limited as a Senior Vice-President/Director
Responsible for writing strategy, China/Hong Kong
telecommunication coverage and leading a team of
Hong Kong-based analysts whose primary focus was
China and Hong Kong markets.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

Mr. Thanh Hung THAI (“Mr. Thai")

Mr. Thai, aged 41, joined the Company as an
executive director of the Company on 24 April
2009. Mr. Thai was re-designated as non-executive
director on 12 February 2010 and resigned on 7
May 2010. Mr. Thai holds a Bachelor’'s Degree
majored in Economics and a Master's Degree in
Business Administration majored in Finance both
from Rutgers University. Mr. Thai is a Chartered
Financial Analysts. Mr. Thai joined Lehman Brothers
in New York and responsible for trading secondary
cash collateralised debt obligations for six years.
Later Mr. Thai was promoted as the Head of
Trading and Syndication in Lehman Brothers and
being responsible for the cash collateralised debt
obligations business in Asia excluding Japan for
four years. After, Mr. Thai joined ZAIS Solutions as
the head of Asia responsible for marketing funds,

raising capital and sourcing assets for ZAIS group.

Mr. TANG Hin Keung, Alfred (“Mr. Tang”)

Mr. Tang, aged 66, joined the Company as an
executive director of the Company on 30 April
2009. Mr. Tang is the Chief Executive Officer of
City Credit Capital (UK) Ltd., a Financial Services
Authority (FSA) regulated firm registered in London
authorised to conduct financial services business
in the U.K. He is also a director and the president
of GFS Forex & Futures Inc.,, a NFA and CFTC
registered financial services firm incorporated in the
U.S.A.. Mr. Tang is responsible for the regulatory
supervision, business development and strategic
planning of these companies. Mr. Tang was an
executive director of Dore Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
from April 2002 to November 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

KRAEERRERKERE

Mr. KWOK Ho On, Anthony (“Mr. Kwok")

Mr. Kwok, aged 57, was appointed as the alternate
director to Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred, an executive
director of the Company on 12 February 2010. Mr.
Kwok was educated in Hawaii and has over 20 years
of business experiences in business development,
merger and acquisition and strategic partnership

development.

During his 7 years tenure at Miramar Developments
Group (U.S.A.) (“Miramar”), Mr. Kwok was in
charge of Miramar’s corporate development
activities and was the key player in a number of
major merger and acquisition projects undertaken

by Miramar.

Afterward, Mr. Kwok became the Managing
Director of Hung Sing Technology Limited, a
Taiwan based technology company that provide
I.T. infrastructure products and services to major
telecommunications companies in Taiwan, People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong. In his capacity as
the Managing Director, Mr. Kwok has successfully
established a clientelé base of over 20 companies
in Greater China, including Hinet, Infoserve, Paul W
and Jitong. Additionally, Mr. Kwok had also played
a key role in establishing key strategic partnerships
with high profile technology companies, including
Global One, MCI, Worldcom, Wherever.Net and

Cosatech Satellite Services.

Mr. Kwok then joined MFP Epping Limited, a
subsidiary of a listed company in Hong Kong, as
a director and was involved in the evaluating the
feasibility in investing in a forestry project. Taking
up the assigning, Mr. Kwok had stationed in the
Republic of Congo for one year in having close
contact and negotiations with various relevant
governmental authorities, labour unions, as well
as taking a position in charge of the operation on

forestry, manufacturing and shipping.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

Mr. Kwok was a director of a company holding
the rights to develop a theme park in Macau and,
as such as has actively negotiated with multi-
national conglomerates in possible co-operation
for development as well as with various other
theme parks in gathering their idea in establishing
the same in Macau. Additionally, Mr. Kwok is
participating in the strategic alliance of certain
key junkets (gaming promoters) in Macau with
operation spanned throughout various major
concession holders, including Wynn, Las Vegas
Sands, Galaxy and MGM. His major role includes
providing a bridge amongst various gaming
promoters, forming a strategic alliance or
conducting merger and acquisition exercises for
selective gaming promoter and negotiation with

concession holders for a better term.

Mr. AHN Do Il (“Mr. Ahn")

Mr. Ahn, aged 43, joined the Company as an
executive director on 26 June 2009. Mr. Ahn
studied Architecture at Kyung Woon University in
Korea and Interior Design at Italia ISAD Interior
Design School in Italy. Mr. Ahn has over 14 years of
experience in business development, distribution of

apparels, and food and beverage.

Mr. Ahn had been working at G.V. Co., Ltd.,
("G.V."), an apparel manufacturing company
headquartered in Korea, for 4 years and was in
charge of G.V.'s entire operation in Milano Italy.
During his services with G.V., Mr. Ahn had been
successfully in setting up 10 factories in Italy
for G.V.'s mass production. Afterward, Mr. Ahn
started his own restaurant business in Korea. Mr.
Ahn launched his first Italian restaurant, “Il mare”,
in 1998. There are 37 “ll mare” now in Korea.
Additionally, Mr. Ahn launched a Korean traditional
restaurant, “HANOK" with 3 stores in January 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

KRAEERRERKERE

When Mr. Ahn’s restaurant business was at the
peak performance, he sold his entire restaurant
business to a listed company in Korea. In December
2007, Mr. Ahn became the CEO of NHS Capital
Ltd., a company listed in Korea Exchange.
During these years, Mr. Ahn invested his time in
restructuring NHS Capital Ltd. and played a major
role in conducting merger and acquisition exercises

in various fields.

Mr. Ahn was an executive director of NHS Capital
Ltd. (KDQ: 025340), an investment company listed
in the Korea Exchange from December 2007 to
December 2008.

Ms. TSUEN Tai Chi, Andy (“Ms. Tsuen”)

Ms. Tsuen, aged 52, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 12 January 2007 and
the Chairman of the Company on 15 January
2007. Ms. Tsuen was re-designated from executive
director to non-executive director on 1 June 2007
and resigned on 30 April 2009. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Tsuen has been the chairman and
a director of EC Capital Ltd, a private investment
company that invests in publicly listed stocks,
secondary market traded securities, forex and other
private equity investments and Ms. Tsuen has been
responsible for analyzing the financial, income,
cash flow forecasts and reports as well as business
profiles for the purpose of investment. Ms. Tsuen
is also an executive director and founding member
of Akon Global Logistics Pte Ltd, a Singapore-
based freight forwarding company, where she is
responsible for setting up the business operations,
human resource planning, financial planning, client
sourcing, client contract negotiations, sourcing
of strategic partnerships and strategic business

planning.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Man Nang (“Mr. Li")

Mr. Li, aged 61 was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 19
October 2003. Mr. Li was qualified as a Professional
Accountant in 1972 with a distinguished result.
Between 1965 and 1978, Mr. Li has worked in
the areas of finance, accounting, management
and development with a number of listed and
multinational companies. Since 1979, Mr. Li
has established a number of companies in the
businesses of jewelry, finance, securities, property
development and investment and has served as a
director for those companies. Mr. Li is presently
a fellow member of The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, The Association of
International Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li also
has a distinguished record in public service. Mr. Li
has served as Honorary President, Chairman and
Adviser for several organizations.

Mr. Jeffrey John ERVINE (“Mr. Ervine”)

Mr. Ervine, aged 44, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 12 January 2007. Mr. Ervine is a Chartered
Public Accountant (US) and graduated from the
Pennsylvania State University with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Science majored in Accounting in 1989
and obtained his MBA from Columbia Business
School in May 1997. Mr. Ervine is currently the chief
operating officer and managing partner of Ardennes
Management, an investment manager in the United
States. Mr. Ervine was previously the chief operating
and financial officer of Exis Capital Management,
Inc., chief financial officer of Carlin Financial Group
and Asset Alliance Corporation. Furthermore, Mr.
Ervine was a Senior Investment Banking Assocate
in the Financial Institutions Group at Bear, Stearns
& Co. Inc and a manger at Deloitte & Touche LLP
in mergers and acquisitions advisory services. Mr.
Ervine has over 18 years of experience working
in the financial field and has extensive experience
in alternate investment products, merges and
acquisitions, taxation and financial management.
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Mr. CHOI Yong Seok (“Mr. Choi")

Mr. Choi, aged 48, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 29 January 2009. Mr. Choi is a Korean national
and was graduated from Seoul National University
Law School in 1985. Mr. Choi was a Prosecuting
Attorney for The Special Task Team at Seoul
Central Public Prosecutor’'s Office between 1988
and 1996. After leaving the position as a Senior
District Attorney at the Ministry of Justice, Mr. Choi
Launched his own law firm, OSEO, from 1999 to
2004 and served as a Professor at Judicial Research
and Training Institute of Korean between 2004 and
2006. Currently, Mr. Choi is working as Senior Legal
Adviser from many major companies in Korea.

Mr. LEUNG Chi Hung (“Mr. Leung”)

Mr. Leung, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 30 April 2009. Mr. Leung has commenced
his accountancy professional training since
1976 and is a member of certain international
accountancy bodies. Mr. Leung is also a certified
public accountant (practising) in Hong Kong and a
director of the corporate practice Arthur Mo & Co.
Limited. Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-
executive director of Daido Group. Mr. Leung was
also an independent non-executive director of Dore
Holdings Limited. Both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Chiu Hung, Alex (“Mr. Chan")

Mr. Chan, aged 44, was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 28 April 2008. Mr.
Chan is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan holds a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Business Administration, major
in Finance. Mr. Chan oversees the legal, corporate,
accounting and compliance matters of the Group.
Mr. Chan has been working with several listed and
multinational companies for over 15 years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

DIRECTORS OF THE INVESTMENT
MANAGER

The Directors of the Investment Manager are:

Mr. LAU Chi Yiu (“Mr. Lau”)

Mr. LAU has over 18 years of experience in the
areas of investment management, consulting and
finance. Mr. Lau served as fund manager to a
co-managed emerging market hedge fund and
portfolios for a group of high net worth individuals
with over US$75 million worth of assets under
management with a focus in the pharmaceutical,
internet technology and semiconductor sectors
globally. Before entering into the consulting,
investment management and financial services
industry, Mr. Lau spent around seven years as an
engineer and a research assistant in enterprises/
institutes in the United States of America including
the New York State Institute on Superconductivity
and Intel Corporation. Mr. Lau holds a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master’'s Degree in
Science of Electrical Engineering from National
Technological University, Fort Collins, Colorado,
the United States of America, a Bachelor’s Degree
in Science of Electrical and Computer Engineering
from State university of New York at Buffalo, New
York, the United States of America and a Certificate
in Plasma processing from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology, the United States of America. Mr. Lau
is a member of the Society of Registered Financial
Planners in Hong Kong, a registered member of
the Financial Planner in People’s Republic of China,
and an associate member of Institute of Financial

Accountants, United Kingdom.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THE INVESTMENT MANAGER

KRAEERRERKERE

Mr. LUM Chor Wah, Richard (“Mr. Lum”)

Mr. LUM has over 20 years of experience in the
investment management, corporate finance and
investment advisory fields including the provision
of advice in relation to group restructuring and
fund raising. During the period from 1990 to 2008,
Mr. Lum acted as executive director of Innovative
International (Holdings) Ltd., Dransfield Holdings
Limited, Digital World Holdings Limited and Teem
Foundation Group Limited (now renamed Dore
Holdings Limited), all of which are companies listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Lum was also a director of DF
China Technology Inc., a company listed on the
Nasdaqg, U.S.A.. During these engagements, Mr.
Lum was in charge of investment and corporate
finance activities, including merger and acquisition,
fund raising, portfolio management, direct
investments and corporate strategic planning.
Mr. Lum possesses further corporate finance and
venture capital experience, through his provision
of investment advisory services to clients during
the period from 1998 till now which included fund
raising exercises ranging from US$2 million to
US$20 million in size. Prior to joining the corporate
world, Mr. Lum was an experienced banker and
had held a senior position in Banque Nationale
de Paris. Mr. Lum holds a Master's Degree in Law
(Chinese Law) from the Renmin University of China,
a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Science from The University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Lum is a member of the Society
of Registered Financial Planners in Hong Kong,
a registered member of the Financial Planner in
People’s Republic of China, a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate
member of Institute of Financial Accountants,
United Kingdom and an associate member of the
Certified Risk Planner.
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The directors present their annual report and
the audited financial statements of Temujin
International Investments Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in
investment holding for medium to long-term capital
appreciation purposes, and in trading of listed
securities. There have been no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during

the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 46

and 47, respectively, of the financial statements.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a

dividend for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to

the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of
the Company are set out in note 22 to the financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out
in the statement of change in equity of the Group
and the Company on page 49 and in note 23 to the

financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”), the
Company’s share premium account is available for
distribution to shareholders subject to a solvency
test on the Company and the provisions of the
Articles. As at 31 March 2010, in the opinion
of the Directors, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2009:
approximately HK$122,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group is engaged in investment holding for
medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes,
and in trading of listed and unlisted securities, there
are no major customers and suppliers during the

year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 120. This summary does

not form part of the audited financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and

up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan

Mr. Mark Damion Go
(Alternate director to Mr.
Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan)

Mr. Thanh Hung Thai

Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred

Mr. Kwok Ho On, Anthony
(Alternate director to Mr.
Tang Hin Keung, Alfred)

Mr. Ahn Do Il

(Appointed as the chairman of

the Company on 30 April 2009)
(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as

the alternate director to

Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan)
(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as

executive director and re-designated

as non-executive director

n 12 February 2010
and resigned on 7 May 2010)

(Appointed on 30 April 2009)

(Appointed on 12 February 2010 as
the alternate director to
Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred)
(Appointed on 26 June 2009)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Tsuen Tai Chi, Andy
Mr. Thanh Hung Thai

(Resigned on 30 April 2009)
(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as
executive director and re-designated
as non-executive director
n 12 February 2010
and resigned on 7 May 2010)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Man Nang

Mr. Jeffrey John Ervine
Mr. Choi Yong Seok
Mr. Leung Chi Hung

(Appointed on 30 April 2009)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Article 152 (the "Articles”) of
the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Jeffrey
John Ervine, Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan and
Mr. Choi Yong Seok will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Being eligible Mr. Jeffrey
John Envine and Mr. Choi Yong Seok offer
themselves for re-election while Mr. Antonio
Ibrahim Tambunan do not offer himself for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board also proposes the appointment of Mr.
Kwok Ho On, Anthony and Mr. Mark Damion Go as
executive Directors and Mr. Ngan Woon Man, Eddie
as Independent non-executive Director at the annual

general meeting.

Each of the non-executive directors’ terms of office
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting in accordance with

the Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company
and the senior management of the Group are set

out on pages 5 to 12 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES
As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short

positions of the Directors, the chief executive
and their associates of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the directors and the chief executives and
their associates of the Company were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required to be and were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing

Rules”) on the Stock Exchange as follows:

Long Positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company

Number of Issued

Name of shareholder Capacity

MR & g7

Mr. Ahn Do I Beneficial owner
LBIRTE EREBA

Note: Mr. Ahn Do Il personally owned 2,104,230
shares of the Company

ordinary shares
held/interested
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long Positions (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2010 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or chief executive and their associates
of the Company, or their spouses or children under
the age of 18, to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or its associated corporation.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors
or the chief executive and their associates of the
Company had or was deemed to have any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within in meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
contained in the Listing Rules as at 31 March 2010.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2010, other than the interests of
certain directors as disclosed under the section
headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests
in shares” above, the interests and short positions
of persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any other members of the Group, or substantial
shareholders as recorded in the register of
substantial shareholder required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follow:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company
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Wang Annie

TrErt

Key Mark Investments
Limited ( Key Mark")
Key Mark Investments
Limited ([Key Mark]J)
Ms. Kwok Kit Ping
R+

Ms. Choi Eun Kyung

Choi Eun KyungZ £

Capacity
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Beneficial owner
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Beneficial owner
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)
Long positions (continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Wang Annie does not hold any position within
the Company and is regarded as a connected person
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company by
virtue of their being a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

2. Ms. Kwok Kit Ping beneficially owns the entire issued
share capital of Key Mark. Key Mark in turn owns
2,958,800 ordinary shares of the Company. Ms.
Kwok Kit Ping does not hold any position within the
Company, each of Ms. Kwok Kit Ping and Key Mark
is regarded as a connected person (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company by virtue of their being
a substantial share holder of the Company.

3. Ms. Choi Eun Kyung does not hold any position
within the Company and is regarded as a connected
person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company by virtue of her being a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010,
the Directors of the Company were not aware of
any other person (other than the directors of the
Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other
members of the Group, or any other substantial
shareholders whose interests or short positions were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in shares”
above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or of any
other body corporate granted to any Directors or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age
to acquire such rights in the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party during or at the end of
the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors
and their respective associates had any interest in
a business which causes or may cause a significant
competition with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person
has or may have with the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to the existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules

during the year and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an audit committee (the
“Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules, for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision
over the financial reporting process and internal
control of the Group. The Committee comprises
four independent non-executive directors of the
Company, namely Mr. Li Man Nang, Mr. Jeffrey
John Ervine, Mr. Choi Yong Seok and Mr. Leung Chi
Hung. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 have been
reviewed by the Committee, who is of the opinion
that such statements comply with the applicable
accounting standards, the Stock Exchange and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have

been made.

BE -LEIEEAAFT LT
gy

SR ONC ET:C R PSR 2
BE L EREEAR T LR o

BrRBERE
AREZABERAA KM SRS (A
AFFEMA L 2 AEER) E 2L EA B
EERBERZIGX  BEARTNFEE
AR OIARBERFIR2HR -

AERBRE

REARRFBRBZAMENRRES
g REANREEARSEAS A
RE-HHFLTRAUMBEZ AR

BRHRE -

EREES
ARRERVERZER®([E%%ZE
g1 WRE ETRANGIEBRES R -
EEEHREEAKE 2 MBHRERF
NAEES - EZEEGHAARAINA
BUFNTEREAK  DAIATER
A - Jeffrey John Ervinedt & - E BB &
ERREREE BRLZEGEEHAR
SEBE-_FT-TFE=-_A=1T—HLF
EZHREVEBRER RRZSEBEDF
BEA g ER - B EENRE
WHEH B2 HKEE -

TEMUJIN INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED ¢ Annual Report 2010



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
With the consent of the Committee, the Board

hereby confirms that, in the preparation of the 2010
consolidated financial statements of the Company,
the Directors, both collectively and individually,
applied such degree of skill, care and diligence as
may reasonably be expected of under the Rule 3.08

of the Listing Rules.

A report on the principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out on

pages 32 to 42 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the years ended 31 March 2008, 2009
and 2010 were audited by HLM & Co. A resolution
for their re-appointment as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 July 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group

recorded a revenue arising mainly from contractual
income from investments of approximately
HK$2,298,000 represented an increase of
approximately 2,298 times as compared with that of
last year. The Group recorded a net loss attributable
to shareholders for the year amounting to
approximately HK$25.8 million, which was enlarged
by approximately HK$20.8 million or 405.9%
as compared with the net loss of approximately

HK$5.1 million recorded last year.

The increase of net loss were mainly attributed
to the impairment loss on financial assets held
for trading of approximately HK$6.2 million, the
increase of executive Directors’ remuneration of
approximately HK$3.9 million and the increase
of administrative expenses which were due to
substantial increase in corporate and investment
transactions so that legal and professional fees and

advertising fees increased materially.

The increase of net loss attributable to shareholders
were compounded by the increase of finance cost
of approximately HK$6.3 million (including an
imputed interest of approximately HK$2.5 million)
arising from the convertible bonds issued during the

year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, pursuant to sales and purchase
agreements entered into between the Company and
two independent third parties dated 22 December
2008, the Company issued 4,208,460 shares of
the Company of HK$0.2 each at an issue price of
HK$1.0 each as the consideration for the acquisition
of a total of 30% equity interest in Ergomics Co.,
Ltd. ("Ergomics”). On a later date, the Group
had managed to dispose 50% of its holdings on
Ergomics to manage the risk of slow performance
of Ergomics. The Group will actively monitor the
project performance on Ergomics and identify any
opportunities to enhance the return of the Group.

Future Outlook

Looking into 2010/2011, with the apparent
stabilization of the financial crisis appears stabilized,
investors optimism has been picking up. In view of
the aforesaid and the relatively attractive valuation
of the equity market, it seems to be the right time
to invest into equity market. In particular, though
the PRC government will take measure to cool down
the overheating economy, the management believes
the PRC government will still adopt significant
economic stimulus programs to maintain the growth
momentum in China. Hence and in view of the
already significant exposure in the Korean market,
the Board will re-orient its investment opportunities
focus to other Asian markets especially Hong Kong
and China. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
identify and pursue investment opportunities by
adopting prudent approach in allocating its financial
resources into investment opportunities that provide
an attractive return with justified risk exposure.

The Group will increase its weighting in listed
securities, mainly to improve its returns on short
to medium terms investments, and also as a
risk diversification tool to provide liquidity when
needed. Yet, the Group will still uphold the existing
investment objectives and policies to achieve long-
term capital appreciation and growth in profits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED T

The Board is optimistic in the long-term
economic prospect of Hong Kong and China. The
management will carefully assess all potential
investment to ensure that the risk is under
manageable level and at the same time the

associate return to the Group is maximized.

The Group will also consider fund raising exercise
to strengthen the financial position of the Group
when suitable situation arise. With more financial
resources, the Group will expand its investment
opportunities which will have sentential return to

the Group’s operating results in the years to come.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Financial resources and liquidity

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had current
assets of approximately HK$23,680,000 (2009:
approximately HK$3,609,000) while the net assets
amounted to approximately HK$217,000 (2009:
approximately HK$4,718,000). There was cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$868,000 (2009:
approximately HK$22,000) as at 31 March 2010.

Saved as the issuance of convertible bonds of
approximately HK$29,162,000 (actual amount is
HK$40,000,000 which is dividend into equity and
liability portion, see below) (2009: Nil), the Group

had no material borrowings as at 31 March 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

At 31 March 2010, none (2009: approximately
9%) of the value of the Group's total assets was
in a portfolio of listed shares, approximately 69%
(2009: approximately 29%) of the value of the
Group's total assets was in a portfolio of unlisted
investments and loans receivables and approximately
31% (2009: approximately 62%) in property,
plant and equipment, bank and cash balances and
other deposits. The percentage of the investment
in listed shares was lower than that of last year as
the management intended to secure a fixed income
for the Group especially when they do not have a
clear view about the financial crisis on the European

countries.

Current ratio, calculated on the basis of the total
current assets over total current liabilities at year-
end date was 9.6 (2009: 6.9) and the gearing ratio,
calculated on the basis of the total liabilities over
total shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2010, was
145.696 (2009: 0.111). The increase in both the
current and gearing ratio was attributable from the

issuance of convertible bonds during the year.

Significant Investments

The Group had completed the acquisition of 30%
equity interest in Ergomics, a Korean company
which is principally engaged in the research
and development of technologies applicable to
automobiles and electronics industries and holds an
aggregate of thirteen patents and has entered into
a letter of intent with a leading Korean automobile
company to utilize its technology, on 3 June 2009.
The management of the Group believes that this
investment will bring in sentential return to the
Group's operating result in the years to come. 15%
of the equity interest in Ergomics was, however,
disposed in order to manage the risk of slow

performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 3 June 2009, pursuant to sales and purchase
agreements entered into between the Company and
two independent third parties dated 22 December
2008, the Company issued 4,208,460 shares of
the Company of HK$0.2 each at an issue price of
HK$1.0 each as consideration for the acquisition of
a total of 30% equity interest in a Korean company
which is principally engaged in the research
and development of technologies applicable to

automobiles and electronic industries.

On 17 June 2009, the Company issued 12% coupon
convertible bonds due on 17 June 2012 in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000 with
a conversion price of HK$1.60 per ordinary shares
of HK$0.20 each (subject to adjustment) of the
Company. The fair value of the convertible bonds
was approximately HK$29,162,000 as at 31 March
2010 valued by an independent professional valuer.
The fund raised from the issuance of the convertible
bonds has been fully applied as working capital of

the Group.

Saved as the issuance of a total of 4,208,460 shares
of the Company for the acquisition of Ergomics
and the issuance of the 12% convertible bonds
which entitle the holders of the bonds rights to
convert the bonds into the shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$1.6 each on or before
17 June 2012, there were no changes in the share
capital structure of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2010.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 3 May
2010, the convertible bond holder had exercised an
amount of HK$8 million of the convertible bonds
which were converted into 5,000,000 ordinary

shares of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

Most of the business transactions of the Group are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Korean
Won. Management of the Group will closely
monitor the fluctuation in these currencies and
take appropriate actions when needed. As at 31
March 2010, the Group does not have any hedging
activities its foreign exchange exposure nor does it
adopt any formal hedging policies. The Group had
not entered into any financial derivatives during the

year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT

LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2010, assets of the Group were

free from any form of legal charge. In addition, the

Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 March 2010, the Group has 9 employees

and the total remuneration paid to staff was
approximately of HK$1.3 million (2009: of
approximately HK$0.8 million) during the year under
review (2009: 4). The employees were remunerated

based on their responsibilities and performance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Following the issue of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”), as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the Company has
carefully reviewed and considered Code provisions,
and carried out a detailed review on the corporate
governance practices of the Company in compliance

with the requirements of the Code.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with a view to
enhancing the management of the Company as well
as preserving the interests of the shareholders as a
whole. The Board is of the view that the Company
has complied with the Code provisions, except for
the following deviation during the year ended 31
March 2010:

Under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code states
that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. An individual
chief executive officer was not appointed during the
year based on the existing size and structure of the

Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)
Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive

directors should be appointed for specific terms,
subject to re-election at the general meeting of
the Company. Currently, all the Directors are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices

are no less exacting that in the Code.

The Company will continue to improve its corporate
governance and believes that good corporate
governance will bring long-term benefits to its

shareholders.

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code set

out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors. Having made specific enquiry of
all directors, the Company confirmed that all the
directors have complied with the required standard

set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg
Composition I24=1

RAFEARRAREAH EFE6
BINATES FNTEERBIIFE

The Board comprises of executive Directors, non-

executive Directors and independent non-executive

Directors during the year and as at the date of this HITES
report as follows:
Executive Directors: BITES:

Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan

(Appointed as the Chairman on 30 April 2009)

Mr. Mark Damion Go

(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as alternate director

to Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan)

Mr. Thanh Hung Thai
(Appointed as executive director on
24 April 2009 and re-designated as
non-executive director on 12 February 2010
and resigned on 7 May 2010)

Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred
(Appointed on 30 April 2009)

Mr. Kwok Ho On, Anthony
(Appointed on 12 February 2010 as alternate
director to Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred)

Mr. Ahn Do
(Appointed on 26 June 2009)

Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Tsuen Tai Chi Andy
(Resigned on 30 April 2009)

Mr. Thanh Hung Thai
(Appointed as executive director on
24 April 2009 and re-designated as
non-executive director on 12 February 2010
and resigned on 7 May 2010)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Li Man Nang
Mr. Jeffrey John Ervine
Mr. Choi Yong Seok
Mr. Leung Chi Hung
(Appointed on 30 April 2009)

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, investment and strategic decisions and
performance. The Investment Manager, Executive
Board, and senior management have been
delegated with the authority and responsibility
by the Board for the day-to-day operations of
the Group while reserving certain key matters for
the approval by the Board. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board Committees. Further details of these Board

Committees are set out in this report.

The Board members have no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other. Such balanced board composition is
formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board and has met recommended practice
under the Code for the Board to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-
executive Directors. The biographical information of
the Directors are set out on pages 5 to 12 under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors of

the Company and the Investment Manager”.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Chairman

The role of the chairman of the Company takes the
lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Group; ensures the effective performance
by the Board of its functions, including compliance
with good corporate governance practices and
encourages and facilitates active contribution of
directors in Board activities. She/He also ensures
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and have received
adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner with the assistance of the company

secretary.

Executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by
the Board. They lead the Group’s management team
in accordance with the directions set by the Board
and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal
control system is in place and the Group’s business
conforms to applicable laws and regulations.

Non-executive Directors and Independent non-
executive Directors

The non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for
an effective corporate governance framework.
Their participations provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of the Group
and its shareholders. The Board consists of four
independent non-executive Directors and four of
them have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors a
confirmation of independence for the year pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. On this basis,
the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.
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LEEBERIBESHAMBEEER
EXEMB - ARFCDWE S BILIERTT
EERB(ETRAUD B IBEAERE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meetings

During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the
Board held 43 regular/special Board meetings. The

attendance of each member at the Board meetings

is set out below:

Name

EEgR

Executive Directors:
Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan
Mr. Tang Hin Keung, Alfred
(Appointed on 30 April 2009)
Mr. Ahn Do Il
(Appointed on 26 June 2009)
Mr. Thanh Hung Thai
(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as
executive director and re-designated
as non-executive director on
12 February 2010)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Thanh Hung Thai
(Appointed on 24 April 2009 as
executive director and re-designated
as non-executive director on
12 February 2010)

Ms. Tsuen Tai Chi, Andy
(Resigned on 30 April 2009)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Li Man Nang

Mr. Leung Chi Hung
(Appointed on 30 April 2009)

Mr. Jeffrey John Ervine

Mr. Choi Yong Seok

A\ Az N
1F "'“Eq/n *ﬁ%

Exg (A

EERRH
BE-—T-TE=A=1-RAULMKE
EHM EEEERTBRER
EFRRA - SRERNEFRRA LM
EER#IIMT -

Number of meetings

attended/Total
HESERE
BITERAY

HITES:

Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan%t 4 42/43

BOT58 55 & 36/36
(RZTEZNFMNA=THEZET)

IR 25/25
(R=ZZETNFERNA-T+BEZT)

RN IS 28/31
(RZZEZENFMNA=Z+IMA
EZERATEELRN_ZE—ZF
ZATZAATARIERNTES)

FHITES:

BRI SR A 0/2
(RZZEENFNA=Z+TH
BEERPITEERN_T—TF
ZAtTZAATARENTES)

PHRZET 38/38
(RZZEENFHEA=T+HEMT)

BYFHTES

TEEEE 40/43

REMSE 36/36
(RZZETNFHUA=TBEZF)

Jeffrey John Ervinedt 4 1/43

ERELEE 43/43

Z HEBREARALTF=
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meetings (continued)

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection by the Directors. Every
Board member is entitled to have access to Board
papers and related materials and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external

professional advice if so required.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established by the Board. The Audit
Committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors during the year. The Audit
Committee will meet at least twice a year. The Audit
Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; making recommendations to
the Board in the appointment and removal of the
external auditors and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditors;
and any questions of resignation or dismissal of
such auditors; and reviewing the interim and annual

reports and the financial statements of the Group.

BEEg (&)
ExggR(8)
FIBEEESE SR THYARRNWNERT
VTHESEH SEFTEREHNESS
XHREBER  REANZEMERST
3 VN 7M‘EIEI R R R - IRA]
REFERSFIHINAFTEEHR -

BEREES
ExgCRUERZES (E%ZEE
g2]) BRZBEENAFEARNANSLE

VIATEFTEAK BERZESHEF
ROBITMAEZ BRREGTEER
BEEARAZUBRERGRAME
ERF:RZERRRINEZEERE
EERMHER  HOEINEZEE Z
KRG LB BZBE 2B I
R REER: REHASETY  F
B¥RE R B HE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
During the year, the Audit Committee held 2

meetings. Details of attendance are set out below:

A\ Az N
1F %/nﬁ%

BEREREG(E)
FRCERZESRBAMAEH - N
FRERFIMT -

8
ik

Number of meetings

Members attended/Total
HESBERE
BE BITEREK
Independent non-executive Directors: BYKHITES:
Mr. Li Man Nang (Chairman) TERESLE(FE) 2/2
Mr. Jeffrey John Ervine Jeffrey John Ervinest & 1/2
Mr. Leung Chi Hung REERE 2/2
Mr. Choi Yong Seok ERBELEE 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration
Committee on 20 February 2006 which consists of
one non-executor Director (resigned on 30 April
2010), one executive Director (appointed on 30
April 2009) and two independent non-executive

Directors during the year.

The remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s remuneration policy for Directors,
senior management, and investment manager
and overseeing the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors, senior management, and

investment manager.

FMEES
RRARRZZEEANF A THRIYH
MEEEe RAFERNEBE -GN
TEFM_ZETNFHNA=THEMT) -
—ERTESEMEENFHNA=TH
BEE)EMEBIIERITES -

FHZEEXTZRAAHRARAEE B
REBEMRELEBZFHRRAEZES
SRHtEZ YEEATEE sS4
BERRELR ZFHER -

=
B

= HE BREAFARRAZZF - FF R




40

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(continued)
During the year, the Remuneration Committee

held 2 meetings to discuss about the remuneration

package of Directors. Details of attendance are set

FMEES (&)

EN HEEERRRITZRE AN
HEBEEZHHEF - R
mF :

out below:

Number of meetings
Members attended/Total

HEEERE

RE BITEREY
Executive Director: HITES
Mr. Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan (Chairman) Antonio Ibrahim Tambunan?t 4 (£ /%) 0/0
Non-executive Director: IFHITES
Ms. Tsuen Tai Chi, Andy (Chairman) ERZHT(FE) 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors: W IEMITES
Mr. Li Man Nang FEEE 2/2
Mr. Jeffrey John Ervine Jeffrey John Ervinest 4 0/2

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors,
the Board will take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates, especially their
experience in the investment business and/or other

professional areas.

Furthermore, as the full Board is responsible for the
selection and approval of candidate for appointment
as Director to the Board, therefore the Company
has not established a Nomination Committee for

the time being.

REZE8S®

EERREHEEN SELREAR
BAZEARE - f2 THEH BHE
NBREEEE AHRRERBELH
B/ B S 2 A5 -

N HREREFSREHERIE
ZEMBEFTEZAE Rk ARFR
R EAIERERES -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare
the Group's financial statements for each financial
period and to ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Board
also ensures the timely publication of the financial
statements. The Directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statements of the auditors of the Group
regarding their responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s

Report on pages 43 to 45 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for
maintaining sound and effective internal control
system of the Group. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of such
systems of internal controls as well as the review
of relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management procedures. An Audit
Committee composites member of the management
was established for conducting a review of the
internal control of the Group which cover the
material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Procedures have been set up, inter alia,
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use
or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and
ensuring the reliability of financial information used
for business and publication. The management
throughout the Group maintains and monitors the

internal control system on an ongoing basis.

A\ Az N
1F "'“Eq/n *ﬁ%

EERNMBHRR2EMRE

EEeRAEFEIREASEEZYH
HEzUBRE TRERVYBHREERGTE
AEBRKRBEGHER -EFEHE
RUBRREFHE - EEREHAAE
BEERER ERWRFLTMEEMAA
EEUARESELLERNERERRR
BZEMHHBRAZERTHEERR °

FAEBZEMETBHRERZETE
BHEE AN ERFEA3EL5E 72 BT =
Bl R & A o

A EPES
EECRARBIEBRERAERZA

MEERR - EFECEREEEERR
BERARMEERS  YRHEBEYE -
LEMBREEEUALRREERERF - —
EREEEBKRBZERZREGEKIL
NEHAEERERBRERNEE B85
M - 2ERAEREELRREEIDGE
ZAREZ -EHFIREF (AR ) N
REEETIAKRBEERARRE &
HEARAFX  BRFET G508k LER
REXBLRTNESRE W BERZA
FEH-AKEEEE-EARBIRERZ
MBPEIE R AR -

= HE BREAFARRAZZF - FF R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERBRE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration in
respect of audit provided by the Group’s auditors,
HLM & Co. is set out below:

Services rendered

PRtz R %

Audit services

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year under review, the Group has
proactively enhanced its corporate transparency
and communications with its shareholders and
the investment community through its mandatory
interim and final reports announcement. Through
the timely distribution of press releases, the
Group has also kept the public abreast of its latest

developments.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
The chairman as well as Chairman of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees and members of the
Committees are pleased to answer shareholders’
questions. Separate resolutions are proposed at
general meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual directors.
Details of poll voting procedures and the rights
of shareholders to demand a poll are included in
the circular to shareholders dispatched together
with the annual report. The circular also includes
relevant details of proposed resolutions, including
biographies of each candidates standing for re-
election. The results of the poll are published in
the newspapers, on the Company’s website (http://
irasia.com/listco/hk/temujin), and on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, (http:/
www.hkex.com.hk).

AT IR

BREE &

WEI R o AR B AR AT S 6 5
AR B RIEEH RS 2 HH 85
mF :

Fee paid/payable
g ERER
HK$' 000

FET

150

REEBE
REBER - RAEES R ET R
ERRBBER - BREFHLES
AEREMERRREKERBR BB
RENEHER AEETCERIRE
BHESKHMER -

BER R A
BRERBERERRREEZGINER
RE—Emm-FELRERLTNEZES
EXRUARZELZEGCKEHELER
EREER EXREREFE (RIEER
BERESR) AUBYIAZRERRRE
RE - BRERRABEFEABRRERKE
AREMZHBHRERFR -—HF TR
RZBHKA %8 K IR &5 SR 2R3
RBEBFE REEEEAZERE
AZBRE BREHRTIERHRE AR
B) 48 Uhi(http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/
temujin R BB E R FBR AR 24
Uk (http://www.hkex.com.hk) °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

15 4 3t 1 47
HLM & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

BYRBMBRES

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre

2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.

TP e KZETE 2-12 SRl mzE o0 305 &
Tel FE7E: (852) 3103 6980

Fax f55: (852) 3104 0170

Email F#: him@hlm.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TEMUIJIN
INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Temujin International Investments
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 46 to 119, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2010, the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

R HBERREERATRR

(REEHEZMAELZ FRAA])

%%E?sﬁﬁz%’fﬁj\ﬂﬂﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
(ErA) REWMBAR (5MEl&

M) &R E 461119EZ?$6\@7J5"W&
R BPHAR_ZE—ZTF=A=1+—
AZHAEERBR HEZBLFE
ZEAKRAR HErHEKRaER HE
BaSPHRNGEERERER UARE
ZETBRME R EBH R

EERAAMBHRRAREZ
B

ERFESRARERTESAIAS
Wiz BEMEHRE L REBECRFHE
PIYZHRBERTE AEREREEMATF
MEINZEHFEaMBE®RE - WETEE
Rt BHREERGHENAEEMA T
2R M BHREB R NEBEEE
ARER I M 8 K SR aR Rt (R = A A B
FFSEERRS|IE) BEVEREE 285
HE RETRABRATIEHERE 2 g5t
hE

ZHBEBREAERLX2FIZFT - 2 F K
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BYZHMBES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

REET 2 B AE
BEZEARRBEESERTIEZE
HBRZERAMBBRIFLER  LER
BAT2® Rtz AEEHEEAM
TERAHRE AR RIEME
MALTEREEFAEET EFEDHRRES
M AREMZEERBENETE
ZIAE - %%EWEAEM‘#T#ﬁ
E-UARAERETER UNAEEE
%ﬁ?é%%ﬁ% BFEEEANERR
7l o

Hey - B

BRBERITRFURGERES M KR
%%ﬁ%%&&ﬁ%EE%Z§V R o
B2 ZERFART A FIE -
BENGEEMBERRFAERNERR
(T s BRI E) Ak

Tr 5% 5 B B AT A8 BF - AZ BRAD = B 6
RAGEREEMAFH2RE T
ﬁ%ﬁ%ZW%#%'uﬁ%hﬁﬁ%
FTEECERRER  BYIFAYHAA
BEZIBEERER -BERTE %$
HEEMRACZEABRRREGEE A
S HEREAE URTFEHEAH
BHRERZEE2I AR -

EERE BEEMRSZERERRE
FZEGBREEEDREZER -

TEMUJIN INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED e Annual Report 2010



3

.

OPINION =R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements EERR HEVBBRERETEM
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of BHRELEMNEERATRE E£ER
the Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group's —E—ZEF=ZA=ZF+—BZUBEKRIK
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in BHEZALFE BEERRERE I
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting EERBEB(RAKRID cEBEERmME
Standards and have been properly prepared in ERER -

accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLM & Co. ERE AT
Certified Public Accountants HEDE AN

Hong Kong, 26 July 2010 BB —_E—FFLH=+/XH




=
For the year ended 31 March 2010 #Z=F—Z&=A=+—HLEE

Revenue

Other income

Net realised gain (loss) on
disposal of financial assets
held for trading

Net unrealised gain on financial
assets held for trading

Impairment loss on financial
assets held for trading

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss attributable to
shareholders

Dividends

Loss per share
— Basic (HK$ per share)

WA
H A

HERFEBEMBEELZ
B0 Wt (B18) 38

FIFEBEMBEEZ
RER W F R
FIFEENBEEL
BEEE
THFX
BE A

BB AT &5 18
BiI8

BRRELER

BEEE
—EX(BBETT)

Notes

B &t

10

11

12

13

2010 2009
—E-ZF —EZENF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHExT FET
2,421 1
1,082 -
26 (466)

- 67
(6,200) -
(16,807) (4,693)
(6,319) -
(25,797) (5,091)
(25,797) (5,091)
1.05 0.24

N/ATEHA




Loss attributable to the
shareholders

Other comprehensive income

(expense):

Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of foreign
operations

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale financial
assets

Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

For the year ended 31 March 2010 #Z=F—Z&=A=+—HALFE

R EEEER

Htt 2w ()

BEBIINEBHMBERER
ZIEREZRE

T ER AL
ATEED

AREFEHE MW (F)

HERHIA

AEEZERXBE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HKS$'000 HK$' 000
FHET FET
(25,797) (5,091)
3,725 -

- (87)

3,725 (87)
(22,072) (5,178)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R R

At 31 March 2010 R=Z—ZF=A=+—H

2010 2009
—F-8F C—TTIhF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT 3T FHBxT F& T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and M= - BB L&A
equipment 15 1,081 95
Available-for-sale financial AIHEVKEE
assets 16 7,072 1,537
8,153 1,632
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets held for FIEEERHBEE
trading 17 - 478
Loans receivable B W E R 18 21,246 =
Other receivables, deposits HM R - e
and prepayments K IEFRIE 19 1,566 3,109
Bank and cash balances RITEFRIE S 20 868 22
23,680 3,609
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accrued H A & 7T B &
charges et &R 2,454 523
Net current assets REBEERE 21,226 3,086
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds Al ;PR & 5 21 29,162 =
Net assets EEFE 217 4,718
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &N 22 5,050 4,209
Reserves ] 23 (4,833) 509
Total equity A 217 4,718
Net asset value per share BREERE 25 HK$0.01 HK$0.22

The consolidated financial statements on pages
46 to 119 were approved and authorised for issue

FAENN90B AV MR EESS
R-E—FELA- B ERE#E

by the Board of Directors on 26 July 2010 and are BHEBATIEERKRESE

signed on its behalf by:

Tang Hin Keung, Alfred Mark Damion Go

i Mark Damion Go
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BZE EBZE
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At 31 March 2008

Issue of unlisted warrant
Other comprehensive expense
Loss for the year

At 31 March 2009

lssue of new shares

Shares ssue expenses

Recognition of equity
component of convertible
bonds

Other comprehensive income

Loss for the year

At 31 March 2010

R-BENE=A=1-R
EIEAE L5
RHEARR

TEERR

RZZRNE=R=T-E
i
k%8R
ERTRRES R

Efp2EnE
RERER

RZZ-FE=A=1-B

For the year ended 31 March 2010 #Z=F—Z&=A=+—HALFE

Equity
Investment component
Share Share  revaluation Warrant o convertible ~ Exchange ~ Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve bonds reserve losses Total
RE  ARER  TRRE:
Ra  BEEE  EfiEE B <BEHR  EXBR  Zi¥ER 3t
HK$' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
Thn Thn Tt Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
4209 79,845 (368) - - - (74632) 9,054
- - - 842 - - - 842
= = (8) = = = = 1)
- - - - - - (5,091) (5,091)
4209 79,845 (455) 812 - - (19703) 4718
841 3367 - - - - - 4,08
- ) - - - - - 0
- - - - 13310 - - 13310
- - - - - 315 - 315
- - - - - - (25,797) (25,797)
5,050 83,205 (455) 842 13310 3705 (105,520 17




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2010 #Z=Z—ZF=ZA=+—HLEFE

50

2010 2009
—E2-25 —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$"000
FEx FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BERK
Loss before taxation BR T Al 5 18 (25,797) (5,091)
Adjustments for: T3 EIE/E L R
Interest income M2 A (2,298) (1)
Interest expense on A #2 IR (& 55 A B 2
convertible bonds 3,787 -
Imputed interest on AR AR & 5 HEE T B
convertible bonds 2,532 -
Depreciation e 158 32
Impairment loss on financial FIEEEMKEE
assets held for trading BEEE 6,200 =
Unrealised gain on financial FIEEEMKBEE
assets held for trading R IE W - (67)
Realised (gain) loss on disposal HEREEENKEE
of financial assets held ZE#B (W) BB
for trading (26) 466
Operating cash flow before LEESFHA 2 KE
movement in working capital WERE (15,444) (4,661)
Increase in loans receivable J&E W & SR 38 AN (21,246) —
Decrease in other receivables, HiEIWHIE Zek
deposits and prepayments TE A RIE R 1,543 509
Increase in other payables and H A & {5 3008 K B T
accrued charges B2 1,931 407
Cash used in operations REMFEHRE (33,216) (3,745)
Interest received 2 A2 2,298 1
Interest paid B F A (3,787) -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING K& X(KFMERLFHE
ACTIVITIES (34,705) (3,744)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
%&Aiﬁﬁu.bg%

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &Z=

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFH
Proceeds on disposal of financial HEFHEEENHEE
assets held for trading Fr 18 18

BERFESEMBEE

Purchase of financial assets held

for trading
Proceeds on disposal of available- HE&MHEHKEEE
for-sale financial assets Fr 1S 38

Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHENKEE
financial assets
Purchases of property,

plant and equipment

BEVE BELREB

NET CASH (USED IN)/ REXEH 2 (i) /Fifs
GENERATED FROM HEREFHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & E B
Net proceeds from issue of BT EMRREE

unlisted warrants Fr 1S 518 5 58

Proceeds from issue of BT MRESFE

convertible bonds ?XIE
Net proceeds from issue of 1T R0 P15 518
new shares ﬁf%ﬁi
NET CASH GENERATED FROM ®BEZBHZHREREFE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRRESEEEERD FE

CASH EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [ER& 5~ 8/
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S£#HBEERBELZEHER
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #AXREERHEELZEHIEHR
AT END OF YEAR

Analysis of the balance of cash RekBHeFEER
and cash equivalents: BEIEAN
Bank and cash balances RITEERE®

= HEBKREAR

—EF=A=t—-HLEE

2010 2009
—E2-25 —TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTER FHET
504 1,763
(6,200) 411)
2,104 -
(7.639) -
(1,149) (4)
(12,380) 1,348
- 842
40,000 -
4,201 -
44,201 842
(2,884) (1,554)
3,730 -

22 1,576

868 22

868 22

DN HEeeZ B - 2 F W
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 4R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability on 25 March 1998. The Company’s
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
with effect from 12 December 2000. Its
registered office is located at P.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, South Church Street, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands and its
principal office in Hong Kong is at Room 703,
7/F., 100 Queen’s Road Central, Central.

The Company is principally engaged in
investment holding for medium to long-term
capital appreciation purposes, and in trading
of listed and unlisted securities. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has adopted
the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the *“
and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("“"HKICPA"), which are or have become

effective for the Group’s financial year

new

beginning on or after 1 April 2009.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2010 &&=

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Eﬂ%iﬁ%m‘?}

—SF=A=t+-ALEE

2. ERMBEREBITEEY

BHREEN(FREHBR

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 38 (Amendments)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 & HKAS 39
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(FRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and
HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements
- Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Financial Instrument: Disclosures

Operating Segments
Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 4R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFERKETESBEH

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Except as described below, the directors of
the Company anticipate the adoption of the
new and revised HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position of
the Group for the current or prior accounting

periods have been prepared and presented.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements

The revised Standard separates owner and
non-owner changes in equity. The statement
of changes in equity includes only details of
transactions which owners, with non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line.
In addition, the Standard introduces the
statement of comprehensive income: it presents
all items of recognised income and expenses,
either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements. The Group has elected to present
two statements.

The new format for the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of change in equity
has been adopted in this financial report and
corresponding amounts have been restated
to conform to the new presentation. The
Standard introduces the accounts of “Other
comprehensive income/expense for the year”
and “Total comprehensive income/expense
for the year” into the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. This change in
presentation has no effect on reported profit or
loss, total income and expense or net assets for

any period presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISMAR MY EE

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instrument: Disclosure

The amended Standard requires additional
disclosure about fair value measurement and
liquidity risk. Fair value measurements are to be
disclosed by source of inputs using a three level
hierarchy for each class of financial instrument.
In addition, reconciliation between the
beginning and ending balance for Level 3 fair
value measurements is now required, as well as
significant transfers between Level 1 and Level
2 fair value measurements. The amendments
also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk

disclosures.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

This Standard requires disclosure of information
about the Group’s operating segments and
replaces the requirement to determine primary
and secondary reporting segments of the
Group. Adoption of this Standard did not have
any significant effect on the financial position
or performance of the Group. The Group
determined that the operating segments were
the same as the business segments previously

identified under HKAS 14 Segment Reporting.

The Group has not early applied the following
new HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 4R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFERKETESBEH

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL EREER ((EBMER
REPORTING STANDARDS SR ) (&)

("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part ERMBREEN (B EAMBHRSEZHR
of Improvements to HKFRSs issued 2B ERZEEN
in 2008’ ERBoERNBRE

ERI%E 2 — B

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued EBYHREER (BF) —EENERMZES
in 20092 BB REER 2 g

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued BEBBREER (BF]) —2-TEEHLER
in 20103 BBREEN 25

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures’ BB e £ E245E BEALTRE

(&E3T)

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate BB e ENETH ARBUHBHRE
Financial Statements' (&E30)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues’ BB G ENE3E gz 2

(E31)
HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items’ BB e £ £395 RERYMER"
(B37)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Additional Exemptions of BEBBREENET  BREMEENEI
First-time Adopters* (#31) e

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from Comparative BAUBRERNE IR ARRREEEHARNE
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time (B3T) BEEUETRLR
Adopters® REARZERASS

HKFRS 2 (Revised) Group Cash-settled Share-based EERBREENEE £ENELEENRGA
Payment Transactions* (&3T) S AN

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations' BAUBREENEIR  ERAH

(&30

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (relating to the BAVBREENEY HMHIA(BEUBEE
classification and measurement 2R E)E
of financial assets)®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of Minimum Funding Bk (ERHBaSEE BASEEEEN

(Amendments) Requirement’ ZEE)-REER
(B31)
HK(FRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to A5 (BARTHRERE SRIRSEETHES
Owners' 288)-2BE1TH
HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with EE(ERNBREZRE  BORRIARANE

Equity Instruments®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

E?H%iﬁ%%llﬁéi

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)
Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as
appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2010 and 1 January 2011, as
appropriate

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 February 2010

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2010

Y Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2011

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may
affect the accounting treatment for business
combination for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the first annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1
April 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for changes in the
Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control, which will be

accounted for as equity transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 4R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces
new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets and will be
effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier
application permitted. The Standard requires
all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of the HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to
be measured at either amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are
held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows and
(ii) have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at fair value.
The application for HKFRS 9 might affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s

financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application for the other new and revised
Standards, Amendments and Interpretations
will have no material impact on the financial
performance and financial position of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISMAR MY EE

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 March each year. Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposal of during the year are included
in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commenced
or up to the date that control ceased.
Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members
of the Group. All significant intra-group
transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 4R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 &=

—ZEF=A=t—-RLFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, the investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less provision for impairment

losses.

Investment in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company that is controlled
by the Company, where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of such company so as

to obtain benefits from its activities.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is measured at
fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and recognised in profit or loss

as follows:

Dividends

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment is
established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the

interest applicable.

3. TEFFBER(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

TEMUJIN INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED ¢ Annual Report 2010

REEE(E)
EARBIZEERERA
M8 AR 2 B Tk A E H
BRORE B BB E R TIAR

ﬂWE“ﬂEﬁ
MBARRAKBEMESNZA
B ARFEREEZRFZ
ke BBRER  AEBEEK
BEHa -

WA’
HMEBENREERAREERAR
Weas RBKCAS (AR5 ) Be Al 5251
2 AR ERKERRE
ZRVEE - WHRIER A E
S NN

S

/s
P& B W A 7 B 3R RE B M WCER
Hi% HT%LAEEDL\ ©

I=|
/T

FILE YA
PN O F = N SN
& 8RB R 2 F B A
EERER o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISMAR MY EE

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any recognised impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight line method, at
the following rates:

Computer equipment 20%
Furniture and fixture 20%
Leasehold improvement 25%
Office equipment 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in the consolidated income
statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be
impaired.

3. TEFFBER(E)

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS HRaR MY AL

Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Impairment of tangible and intangible

(f)

assets other than goodwill (continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase under
that standard.

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions
in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional
currency at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eﬂ%iﬁ%& B &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(f) Foreign currency (continued) (F) e (E)

3. TEGFBEE

Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that
forms part of the Group’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income in the
consolidated financial statements and will
be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) of the Group at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 4R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEFHHEE(Z
(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (g) I T A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the statement of financial
position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets
(other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified
into one of the three categories, including
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eﬂ%iﬁ%& B &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

3. TEFFBER(E)

(9) ¥BITAE)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other
than those financial assets designed as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included

in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two
subcategories, including financial assets
held for trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 4R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 &=

—ZRF=A=t—-HLEE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for

trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future;

or

it is a part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated

and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial

asset held for trading may be designated

as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that

would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with
the Company’'s documented risk
management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is

provided internally on that basis; or

3. TEFFBER(E)

(9) ¥BITAE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R AR Y A

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

3. TEGFBEE

(9) BB ITA(E)

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss (continued)

e it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated as at FVTPL.

At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excluded any
dividend or interest earned on the financial

assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less

any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial
assets are non-derivatives that are either
designed or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments. The Group
designated unlisted equity securities

investments as AFS financial assets.
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B #S 3R Y AL
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHE(E

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve
until the financial asset is disposed of or
determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment

loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment
at end of reporting period. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eﬂ%iﬁ%& B &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

3. TEFFBR(A)

(9) BB ITRA(E)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
For an AFS equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value
of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of

impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective

evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the

issuer or counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest

rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent

periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEFHHE(E)
(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(9) BB ITRA(E)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an

allowance account.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities,
impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment reserve.
In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of
the investment can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition

of the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eﬂ%iﬁ%& Y &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

3. TEGFBER(A)

(9) BB ITRA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities
are generally classified into financial
liabilities at FVTPL and other financial

liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis other than those
financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL,
of which the interest expense is included

in net gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two
subcategories, including financial liabilities
held for trading and those designated at

FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for

trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near

future; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of
an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated

and effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Eﬂ%iﬁ%& Y &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

3. TEGFBER(A)

(9) ¥BITARE)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be designated

as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that

would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is

provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excluded

any interest paid on the financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEFHHE(E)
(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(9) BB ITRA(E)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including other
payables and others) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the
Company that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity

instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue
of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the bonds into equity,
is included in convertible bonds equity

reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R AR Y A

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

3. TEFFBR(A)

(9) BB ITRA(E)

Convertible bonds (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the
liability component of convertible bonds
is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion
option classified as equity will remain
in the convertible bonds equity reserve
until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance stated in the
convertible bonds equity reserve will be
transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at
the maturity date, the balance stated in
the convertible bonds equity reserve will
be released to accumulated losses. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion

option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the convertible bonds are allocated
to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible bonds using the effective

interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Financial instruments (continued)

3. TEGFHBEE

(9) BB ITRA(E)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when
a financial asset is transferred, the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all
the risk and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for

the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2010 &&=

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

(9)

(h)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 &=

—ZRF=A=t—-HLEE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Taxation (continued)

(i)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part

of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or
credited to profit or loss, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is

also dealt with in equity.

Related party

Parties are considered to be related if one
party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals or corporate

entities.

3. TEGFBER(A)

(h) %A (&)

()
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2010 &&=

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(k)

0

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and state-managed retirement
benefit scheme are changed as expenses
as they fall due. The Group’s obligations
under state-managed retirement benefits
schemes are equivalent to those arising in
a defined contribution retirement benefits

scheme.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation as a result of past
events; and it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the end of
reporting period, and are discounted to

present value where the effect is material.

Operating lease

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

Rental payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-

line basis.

Mﬁﬁ%%%

—SF=A=t+-ALEE

3. TEGFBER(A)
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Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(continued)
(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash
at bank and on hand, time deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. For the
purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, bank overdrafts and bank
loans, if any, which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of an
enterprise’s cash managements are also
included as component of cash and cash

equivalents.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4,
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of reporting period that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below.
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends
to derive future economic benefits from the use
of the Group's property, plant and equipment.
The residual values reflect the directors’
estimated amount that the Group would
currently obtain from disposal of the asset,
after deducting the estimated costs of disposal,
if the assets were already of the age and in the

condition expected at the end of its useful life.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group's provision policy for bad and
doubtful debts is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowance may be

required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)
Estimated impairment of available-for-sale

financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS
39 to determine when an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making
this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost; and the financial health of and
near-term business outlook for the investee,
including factors such as industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. Where the
final outcome of these matters is different from
the management’s estimates and judgements,
such differences will impact the income
statement and carrying value of investment
revaluation reserve in the period in which such
determination is made. Based on the Group's
estimation, no impairment loss on available-for-
sale financial assets (2009: HK$Nil) has been

recognised during the year.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

TEMUJIN INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED ¢ Annual Report 2010

RS AR AT ZF
BERZEFERR (&

HHEMBEE 2 HFTRE

AEEEEE -—RAALENKEE
EERCDRER  KBEEBSEL
FIVRANES - HBEEFEEE
RHEE - EED UL RAER K&
EFE(BREMER) XRRKEN
I EAR R L AR AN B 455 48 B i A 2K
B URBEREENMBRERB)
MEBMEHMS  BRINEAR
TERE RWEEUALEERR
ERSRESAEZ ERHBFHEL
REERBHINERRE 2t K #
Biey BEAZESHELERET
ZHEz KSR ERREERFEEZ
REHEBREE REAEEZE
AOFALECHERATLENKE
EREBE(ZZETNF : TET) o

EEABEE
AEEMNESBEERER  =2RES
Bl BRI BEREEELE LA
BARRERD RN AEMEZRRS
BAERFZ  RAREREENE
REBARBBEESHA - B 7 #F
LFABRERLEE  AEBAEH
BYNFRENBRSEHE  AKRE
BEER BOHBROIHEEE
LUBR E 75 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2010 &&=

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
Consistent with others in the industry, the

Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
debt divided by total assets. Debt included
convertible bonds and total assets included
non-current assets and current assets as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

At 31 March 2010, the gearing ratio is 0.92
(2009: Nil). The increase in the gearing ratio
during the year resulted primarily from issuing

of the convertible bonds.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’'s major financial instruments
include equity investments, loans receivable,
other receivables and other payables. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies
applied by the Group to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for the cash and cash equivalents
which carry floating interest rate, the Group
has no other significant interest-bearing
assets with floating rates. The Group's income
and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest

rates.

Mﬁﬁ%%%

—SF=A=t+-BLLEE

EvERER(F)

HEANHEMEE &K AEEFA
LB 1m,%ﬁé$ It £ R 37 B8

NBEEFE -BEHEEA

5 MBREERRBIERBE

ENRBEE (WREMBARRRA
)

R-F-FE=A=+-0 &f
H%EB092 (ZBBAS M) - 8
{8 b 0 4 PO B O BT
TRRIES -

BHEREEEBRERBEE

AEETZVBTIARERRRE
JE U5 B R % H th B KRR IR K B A FE
RNREBE - ZEWBIAEZHBRS
BZWHRE FRZSHMBEIA
R EAEERUAENZSER
ZHEHIMT BEREEEZS
BB AERABEEESNERRE
Mz AE

BERRkAFENRRR

BRRehBEFEYAERET S
B AEBUYEBEMEANIANT R
AENNEEE - AREKRARE
LR IME NGB LN IS

ZHBEBREAERLXIAI=ZFT - 2 F K

83



84

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Assuming the balance at 31 March 2010 was
the amount for the whole year, if the interest
rate was 50 basis points higher or lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2010
would increase or decrease by HK$4,341 (2009:
HK$111).

Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from

various currency exposures, primarily with

6.

BHEREEERERBE
(%)

BBE D
BRR=F-FF=A=+—-AZ

it
RBEDEFREIRE WEMNE L
THek i ES0E R - MATA H
HEHIE AAKEHRE_FT-F
FZRA=T—HBLEFEZEERKIE
MR ADE,341EBET(ZETNF

11178 7T) °

S RERERE

AEBEBEBL AXKEZH
ERZHNEERRER HPREERA
pREET(BIT) RARE (TA
R - SNEEXREREKRBINE

respect to the Korean Won (“KRW") and the
Renminbi (“RMB").

arises from future commercial transactions,

Foreign exchange risk

recognised assets and liabilities and net

investments in foreign operations.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table shows the sensitivity
analysis of a 5% increase/decrease in KRW and
RMB against the Hong Kong dollars, the effect

in the loss for the year is as follows:

Impact of KRW

BERKEFE-

BRED N

REER

TRITFTBTIEARELBET
LR TERSREAFEER T E

ZHBRESIHAOT

Impact of RMB

Breyg ARMzEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-B2F —TTHhHF Z2-BF Z—TTIF
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FHT THAT FHT FHAT
Increase/decrease in AEFEE
loss for the year #in,/Sm 1,467 - 77 73
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Price risk

The Group is exposed to financial assets price
risks as investments held by the Group are
classified on the consolidated statement of
financial position either as available-for-sale
financial assets or as financial assets held for
trading. To manage its price risk arising from
investments in financial assets, the Group

diversifies its portfolio.

If the financial assets price of the respective
investments held by the Group as available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets
held for trading were higher or lower by 5%
as at 31 March 2010, the Group’s investment
revaluation reserve and loss for the year
would increase or decrease by HK$353,619
(2009: HK$76,857) and Nil (2009: HK$23,920)

respectively.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure
that money lending transactions are made to
borrowers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group has policies that limit the amount of

credit exposure to any borrower.

The carrying amounts of deposits and
receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets. The
Group considers that adequate provision for
unrecoverable other receivables has been
made in the relevant accounting period after
considering the Group's experience in collection

of other receivables.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(continued)

Liquidity risk

With regard to 2010 and thereafter, the
liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash flow
from operations to meet its debt obligations
as they fall due. In the management of the
liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuation in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of borrowings and

ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial

liabilities at the end of reporting period is as

BHEREEEERRBE
(%)

REE SRR
R_T—TFREEMES  ~&E
ZRBESTFERBEATELES
B RS RE AR EEH
Bz - REERDE SRR
K -AEBERRERETERERAR
REUAAEELERFEESRRE
BenBRdrERekReE
BYKE BEEREEREEZER -
W R EERRZL -

REBRRERERF 2V BEE
ZEHMAWMTE

follows:
Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective  Less than 1year undiscounted  amount at
interest rate Tyear to5years cashflows  31.3.2010
R-2-8F
L B3] FURRE ZA=1-H
ERAZ - -F2RF  REEE 2BEE
% HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TR
2010 “8-%f
Other payables and accrued charges ~ EAhJE( AR ExH B N/ATER 2,454 - 2,454 2,454
Convertible bonds AR E% 29.47% - 29,162 29,162 29,162

2,454 29,162 31,616 31,616
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

2009 it & 5 K:2
Other payables and accrued charges  EftiE( 3
Convertible bonds ARES

BREHER

Year ended 31 March 2010 &=

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

T
(LE
%

NATER
NARE A

Prudent liquidity risk management includes

maintaining sufficient cash and financial assets

and the ability to close out market positions.

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying

businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash

and marketable securities.

The Group considers that the exposure to

liquidity risk is insignificant as the Group does

not have any material current liabilities.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Fair value

As at 31 March 2010, the carrying amount of
cash and cash equivalent, other receivables,
prepayments and deposits and other payables
approximated their fair values due to short-
term maturities of these assets and liabilities.
The Group considers that financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position at

amounts approximating to their fair values.

Fair values on financial instruments

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following table presents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured
at fair value at 31 March 2010 across the
three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 7 Financial Instrument:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its
entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as

follows:—

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments.

—  Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Fair values on financial instruments (continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(continued)

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair value

measured using valuation techniques

in which any significant input is not

based on observable market data.

At 31 March 2010, the Group had
following financial instruments carried at
fair value all of which are based on the

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:—

Assets:

Level 3: Available-for-sale financial assets

At 31 March 2010, the Group has no
financial instruments measured at fair

value under Level 1 and Level 2.

During the year ended 31 March 2010,
there were no significant transfers of fair
value measurements between financial
instruments in Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfer into or out of Level 3.

6.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Fair values on financial instruments (continued)

(if)  Fair values of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’'s
and the Company's financial instruments
carried at cost less accumulated
impairments were not materially different

from their fair values as at 31 March 2010.

The Group AEE

Loans receivable JE W & 5K

Other receivables, Hi IR - R
deposits and SSELNE
prepayments

Bank and cash balances $E1T#F REE
Other payables and H i fE 5008 &
accrued charges FEET &R

Estimation of fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific
point in time and based on relevant market
information and information about the financial
instrument. These estimates are subjective in
nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgement and therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in bases
of assumptions could significantly affect the

estimates.

6. WKEAREEREERBE
(%)
MBEIRZAFEE)
(y) - FEUINSERZ BT
Az FE
RE B KRR A KA R R &
BEINER 2B TA KRR
BEEEER_ZE—ZTF=H
= t+—HZAFEITEERT
[ °
2010 2009
—E—TF —ETNF
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
IREE NEE REE NEE
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TER TER FAT FAT
21,246 21,246 . _
1,566 1,566 3,109 3,109
868 868 22 22
(2,454) (2,454) (524) (524)
AP
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(continued)
Estimation of fair value (continued)

The carrying values of the loans receivable,
other receivables, deposits and prepayments,
bank and cash balances, other payables and
accrued charges, approximate their respective
fair value because of the short maturities of

these instruments.

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7.

An analysis of revenue and other income is as

follows:

Revenue: A
Interest income from KB B SR 2 B B U A
financial institutions

Interest income on loans REFE=ZZHZEX

to third parties Z F B A
Investment income & WA
Other income: E A

RN —REEFA

Forfeiture of amount due

to a director

Total revenue LNk

BHEREEEERRBE
(%)

DPEMGE (E)

FEWER HMEWRE ek
BNR - -RTEFERRS HiBE
NHRBELEFER 2 X FEREH
AYMERESR 2 AFEES -

B R H Al A
WA REAIBLATZHTLT -
2010 2009
—F-TF —TTNF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR TAT
- 1
2,298 -
123 -
2,421 1
1,082 -
3,503 1

= B EBREARRZA=ZZF - FF R
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating

Segments with effect from 1 January 2009.
HKFRS 8 is a disclosure Standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of allocating resources to segments
and assessing their performance. In contrast,
the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting) required an entity to identify two
sets of segments (business and geographical),
using a risks and returns approach. In the past,
the Group’s primary reporting segment was
business segments. The adoption of HKFRS
8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the
Group’s reportable segments as compared with
the primary reportable segments determined in
accordance with HKAS 14.

During the years ended 31 March 2010 and
2009, the Group's revenue and net losses were
mainly derived from the interest income and
dividend income from investment holding.
The directors consider that these activities
constitute one business segment since these
transactions are subject to common risks
and returns. Given the nature of the Group's
operation is investment holding, it is not
considered meaningful to provide a business

segment analysis of operating losses.
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Year ended 31 March 2010 #Z=—Z—ZF=A=+—HLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group operates in three principal
geographical areas — Hong Kong SAR, The
People’s Republic of China (excluding Hong
Kong) (“the PRC”) and The Republic of Korea.
The Group’s segment assets and liabilities for
the year, analysed by geographical area, are as

follows:

8. PEEM (&)
AEER=—BXEME - (FER
B PEARANME (TEESE)
(THE)EBREZEE - AFEAK
BiziwR o BEERAELD
T

Hong Kong, SAR PRC The Republic of Korea Total
ERKE TE &8 aft
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-%3F CTRAE CB-%F CTEAE 23-%3F CTRAE C3-3F CEINE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Téx TEr TEx  TEn  THn  TEr  TEr  TEx
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
Assets AE
Segment assets HEEE m 95 1,537 1,537 25,987 - 28,245 1,632
Unallocated corporate K ARAAEE
assets 3,588 3,609
Total assets AEfR 3833 541
Liabltes af
Seqment liablties AERE - - - - M - 14 -
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9.

10.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on borrowings
wholly repayable

within five years:

Interest expenses on
convertible bonds
Imputed interest on
convertible bonds

TAXATION

9. MEKA
2010 2009
—B-BF -—ITThH
HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
FiEx FHET

ARAFABREELZ
ERZHE

AR E S 2 F B X

B ES ZEEN S

3,787 =

2,532 =

6,319 =

10. Hi |

No provision for profits tax is required since the

Group has no assessable profits either arising

from Hong Kong or other jurisdictions during
the year (2009: Nil).

HRAKRERAFERALERAE
BEREMADEEE BRBEN (=
TENE  E)  REBARNGHE
B -
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

10. TAXATION (continued) 10. i1 (&
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled REEHIAX B EEE KERAE
to the loss per consolidated income statement B2 HERNT
as follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$' 000 HK$'000
FTHERT FETT
Loss before taxation PR A& 18 (25,797) (5,091)
Tax at the domestic income IR ETS T HE % 16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% ZZETNRF 16.5%)
(2009: 16.5%) FFE 2R (4,257) (840)
Tax effect of expenses that A & Ji& iR B¢ ) BF
are not deductible in PRI MM A 2 B &
determining taxable profit 1,746 9
Tax effect of non-taxable BARM WA Z R E
revenues (350) -
Effect of different tax rates ~ REMENEREREE 2
of subsidiaries operating B ARz TR =
in other jurisdiction -2 632 -
Tax effect on temporary REREREZE BB 2
differences not recognised (1) (1)
Tax effect of tax losses not ~ RERMEEB 2 REFE
recognised 2,230 832
Tax charge for the year REERIEX - -
At the end of reporting period, the Group N4 H 4 R B - AN & E A K 8
had unused tax losses of approximately ARHFF T AHEBRBERY A
HK$38,089,000 (2009: approximately 38,089,000 T (ZEZNF : 4
HK$24,577,000) available for offset against 24,577,000/ 70) + ] PR HR AL 62 o
future profits that may be carried forward ERARERZE Ao EE
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been WERRIEEERREEHBEE

recognised in respect of the tax losses due to

unpredictability of future profit streams.

ZHBEBREAERLXII=ZFT - 2 F K
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11.LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

Loss attributable to shareholders is stated after

charging the following:

Directors’ remunerations EEMSE
Fees we
Other remunerations E b i

Provident fund contributions AfEL R

Total directors’ remunerations = E Bl & 2%

Staff costs 8 TR
Salaries e

Provident fund contributions A& & R

Total staff costs (excluding B T A4%E
directors’ remunerations) (TERESHE)

Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN 2 B+
Annual listing fee FELETWER

TEER

Depreciation

158

1M1 BRREMLEE
BB e 1B TV IR LA T IE B 4
7 :
2010 2009
—E—TE —TThE
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
FHT FHBT
3,295 365
18 -
3,313 365
2,290 785
33 -
2,323 785
160 115
145 145

32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISWAR MY EE

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

DIVIDENDS
No dividends have been paid or declared by the

Company during the year (2009: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based

on the following data:

Loss for the purposes of
basic loss per share ZEE

Bip A :

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of AR EESRELEIE
Z TR ER

shares for the purpose of

basic loss per share

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
March 2010 has not been disclosed, as the
warrants and convertible bonds outstanding
during the year had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share for the year ended 31
March 2010. No diluted loss per share was
presented in 2009 as there was no potential

dilutive share during the year.

RRFESRERESE

12. KRB

FAARAALELNHE IR
BE(ZEZENF &) -

13.BREE

BREBDREBEATBIEFE :

2010 2009
—E-BE —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THRT AT
(25,797) (5,091)
24,522,373 21,042,300

RRAEE W RITEZRREE

AMEEFHEE_T—FTF=A
ST HALEFEZEREAEBRE
RESTE Rit YEREEE
—E-TFE=A=1+—RHLEEFEZ
BEREBEEERE R ELFEALE
BEBEBRXE RN At Y&
2N _ZFFNFZBREEEHE -

= B E BREAERRZA=ZZF - FF R
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST MEERABRESHFALTZ

PAID INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors
The aggregate amount of emoluments

payable by the Group during the year is as

follows:
Fees e
Executive directors WITES
Non-executive directors 3E#1TE =
Independent B EHITES
non-executive
directors
Other emoluments H b B <
Basic salaries and AR NEMEFH

other benefits

The emoluments of each of the directors
fell within the remuneration band of
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000.

No directors had waived any emoluments
and no emoluments were paid to the
directors as inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during the year (2009: Nil).
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[0
(a) E=

AEBERZEFREAIN Z M
TN

2010 2009
—E2-2fF —EFENF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET FAET
3,050 38

- 140

245 187

3,295 365
3,295 365

ZEEZMEe N TFESE LR
1,000,000/ 7T 2 & & °

RAFE BEEENELH
ekt ENME TEEN
EREMAREERLNENA
REBRZ ZE) ERHEBE
BzwE(CZEZEAF &) -
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST MBEERIBREEFALZ
PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS < (&)
(continued)
(a) Directors (continued) () EE (&)
The emoluments paid or payable to each ENSEMNNE (ZETREF
of the nine (2009: ten) directors are as TR)ESCMESMT :
follows:
Fees 2010 2009
fig “E-%F ZETNE
Independent
Executive  non-executive Total Total
directors directors emoluments emoluments
Bl
gz FHTES HesE Held
HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000
AL T AL TER
Antonio lbrahim Tambunan Antonio lbrahim Tambunan
(Note 1) (i) 134 - 134 10
Mark Damion Go (Note 2) Mark Damion Go (#/5#2) 924 - 924 =
Tang Hin Keung Alfred (Note 3) 8673 (#/23) 55 - 55 =
Ahn Do I (Note 4) TR (W) 969 - %9 -
Tsuen Tai Chi Andy (Note 5) 2R2(HH5) = - - 60
Thanh Hung Tai (Note 6) Bk (o) 968 - 968 =
Yeh Fang Ching (Note 7) EREHi7) = - - 5
Hao Wei Chieh (Note 8) Wk s = = - 35
Li Man Nang 5y - 60 60 60
Jeffrey John Ervine Jeffrey John Ervine - 60 60 60
Choi Yong Seok (Note 1) ERB(H1) - 70 70 11
Leung Chi Hung (Note 3) DEL (W) - 55 55 =
Chuan Wei Chen (Note 9) 2ER (i) - - - 2%
Hoo Chuin Hoong (Note 10) &Ik 10) = = - 4
Fang Tsz Ying (Note 11) TR Wit - - - 5
Total % 3,050 145 3,295 365

ZHBEBREAERLXIAI=ZFT - 2 F K
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Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS" AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’" EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(a) Directors (continued)

Notes:

10.

11.

Appointed on 29 January 2009

Appointed on 24 April 2009

Appointed on 30 April 2009

Appointed on 26 June 2009

Resigned on 30 April 2009

Appointed on 24 April 2009 and resigned
on 7 May 2010

Retired on 26 August 2008 and re-
appointed on 19 September 2008 and

resigned on 29 January 2009

Appointed on 26 August 2008 and
resigned on 25 March 2009

Retired on 26 August 2008

Appointed on 26 August 2008 and
resigned on 19 September 2008

Resigned on 9 March 2009

MVEERAEBEREHFALTZ
M (&

(a) E=E(E)
Braz -

1. R=FETENE—H=TNH

EZRE

2. R-EZAFHEA-—+MA
EZRE

3. R_EZNFHA=TEE
E e

4. MR-ZETZAFRA-_TXH
EZRT

5. RIZETZNFNA=+HE
£

6. RZZETNFHEA=-+MH
ERIERN_ZT—ZTFHA
+ H BT

7. RZZEZENFENAZ=Z+<AB
BEEER=_ZZENFAA
TABAEER=ZTZNSF
—AZ TN BEE

8. RIZZEZNFNAZ+H
BEERAR_ZETNE=A
—+HRHBEBT

9. RZZEZENFNAZ+H
R

10. R=ZZEZNFENA=Z+H
ERIRNR_ZZTNEANA
THhBBE

1. RZZTEZNF=ANBEE
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14. DIRECTORS" AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS’" EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals’

MVEERAEBEREHFALTZ
& (&)

(b) TEBEFALTZHME

emoluments
The emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals (2009: five) (which include 4

directors (2009:3)) were as follows:

Basic salaries and
other benefits

Contributions to
retirement benefits

scheme

The emoluments of each of all the five
highest paid employees fall within the
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000.

There was no arrangement under which
any of the five (2009: five) highest paid
employees had waived or agreed to waive

any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any of the directors or the
highest paid employees as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.

EAXF o LEMERN

R KR 8] HE5K

hA(ZFEFTNAF: A%) (HF
BEMNE(ZZEZNF: =F)
ER)ESFALTZHEET

2010 2009

—F-FF —TTINF

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FET FHTT

3,963 952

18 =

3,981 952

2R AR RERESBZHE T

N F =34 T 51,000,000 7T 2 & E
ﬂq °

RAFE  BERT L EM R BEE(E
AE(ZEZNF AR BSFE
BZERAMALTHEREZHREEM

Mz -

RAFEE AKBEYEREFAES
IEEHFEEINIAME  FR
SEEMAREE KRN EMARE
B 2 2R SIERERERZHE -

ZHBEBREAERLXII=ZFT - 2 F K
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EQUIPMENT

COST
At 31 March 208
Additions

At 31 March 2009
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2010

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 31 March 2008

Charge for the year

At 31 March 2009
Exchange difference
Eliminated on disposals
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2010

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 March 2010

At 31 March 2009

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 35 3R 3% BT &

Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

15. 9% - BERRKRE

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Computer
improvement fixtures equipment equipment Total
HENEEE GAREE BLAERE EKRE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
BAE
R-EEN\F=A=+—H = 167 47 255 469
EE - = 4 - 4
RZFENF=A=1+—H - 167 51 255 473
BE 626 447 55 21 1,149
& = (167) (38) (117) (322)
RZE-ZF=A=+—H 626 447 68 159 1,300
NERAE
R-ZEENF=A=+—H - 167 45 134 346
AEEYH = = 3 29 32
R-ZEZAF=A=+—H - 167 48 163 378
EHEE - 5 - - 5
o B 3 = (167) (38) (117) (322)
AFEETH 52 68 10 28 158
R-ZE-—ZF=A=+—H 52 73 20 74 219
REFE
R-ZE-—ZFF=F=+—H 574 374 48 85 1,081
R-ZEZAF=A=+—H = = 3 92 95
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 16. T HEMBEE
ASSETS
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FET
Unlisted equity securities EINIE E TR AN 2
overseas, at fair value BRATE BT
(note 1) 1,537 1,537
Unlisted equity securities BINE ETRRANEE 5
overseas, at cost (note 2) BREAE (K at2) 5,535 -
7,072 1,537
Particulars of available-for-sale financial assets AIHEMBEEFBNOT :
are as follows:
Percentage
Name of Place of of interest Unlisted equity
investee companies incorporation held securities, at cost Fair value adjustment Carrying value
fris R FLmREY
BXRENELH AR Aft &% RAAE ATERE REf
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-2F CEENF CE-%F CEENF CE-%f CEENE
HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TEr  TEr  TEn TEx Téx TiEn
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16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 16. AIHEMKEE (&

ASSETS (continued)
Shanghai Health is principally engaged in
development of medical products in the PRC.

No dividend was received or receivable during

tEEBRTETI2LERAERE
B ZRF o REILED WKL

BB o

the year.
Unlisted equity
securities, at costs Impairment Carrying value
FIMERMES  RAAE AE REfE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Z¥-BF “TINF CE-%F _TTNEF -F-BF _TEAF
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
T TiEn TEn TEx TER Thn
Note 2: Witz :
Ergomics Co., Ltd. ~ The Republic of Korea 15% 2,104 - - - 2,104 -
(“Ergomics”) i
ILC Co., Ltd. ("ILC")  The Republic of Korea 20% 3431 - - - 3431 -
#H
Total 25t 5,535 - - - 5,535 -

Ergomics is principally engaged in production,
sale and trading of PIP products and
equipment. The amount of investment in
Ergomics is HK$4,208,000 but the Company
had also disposed 15% equity interest in
Ergomics of HK$2,104,000 before year end.
At 31 March 2010, the carrying amount of
investment in Ergomics is HK$2,104,000. No
dividend was received or receivable during the
year.

ILC is principally engaged in service business
of providing information and e-commerce
business. The carrying amount of investment in
ILC as at 31 March 2010 is KRW500,000,000
which is equivalent to approximately
HK$3,431,000. No dividend was received or
receivable during the year.
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ErgomicsE Z #t EPIPE @ R & E
ZHEE HEREEEK RFE
A * FAErgomicsZ & & < BRH B &
4,208,000/ 7T » HE AR 2 Al IR 0 A
& (] BA2,104,0007% Jt i &Ergomics
ZI5%BHE R —FF=H
=+ —H ' RErgomicsit B 2 BREMA
18 /52,104,000% 7T » A F FE R I &
Bk AR B -

ILCEERFIRMENREFHBEE
B-RZZE—FTF=A=+—8 "
RILCZ 1% & 2 Bk {8 /500,000,000
8 70 (A8 7 #93,431,0008 7T) ° A&
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZF=A=1+—HIEFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 16. THEMNBEE (&)
ASSETS (continued)

The above two unlisted equity securities are HRAARIEERR DM MEIE
measured at cost less impairment at the end MEmMEES 2 AT EEE SR
of reporting period because the directors of B W WE A R EKAER
the Company are of the opinion that their fair WERTE °

values cannot be measured reliably.

FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR 17. B EEEMBEE
TRADING
2010 2009
—E2-2F —EETNF
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET T 7T
Financial assets held FIEEENBEE
for trading
Listed in Hong Kong, at cost R&EB LM @ K AE - 411
Unrealised gain recognised RERE R ERZ
in consolidated income REIR W
statement - 67
- 478
Market value at 31 March R=A=+—HBzmE - 478
The fair value of listed securities is based on B EZAFEDBRERERLER
quoted market prices in active market at the RGBTSR (B A% o
end of the reporting period.
= B EBBEEERLZGB =T — T FE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B #S 3R Y AL

Year ended 31 March 2010 &=

18. LOANS RECEIVABLE

—ZRF=A=t—-HLEE

18. EWWE K

Loans granted to borrowers are repayable
according to repayment schedules. The

balances comprise loans receivable from:

Loans to third parties (note a) IREFE=F 2 EX

Accrued interest FEETF B

ERANER T 2 ERBREERE
MREE BHREFEUANTZEKE

= .
oA

Less: Balances due within B ETARBEELZ—FA

one year included in B HA 4 61
current assets

FERE LD

Non-current portion

Note:

(a) At the end of the reporting period, loans
receivable carry fixed interest rates ranging from
12% per annum to 15% per annum; and all
loans receivable are due within one year.

(b) The loans had granted to each of three
independent parties of the Group of KRW1
billion approximately HK$6.8 million.

(c) The loans and receivable are denominated
in Korean Won amounting to KRW3 billion
equivalent to HK$20.5 million.

The directors assessed the collectability of loans
receivable at the end of the reporting period
individually with reference to borrowers’ past
collection history and current creditworthiness.
In the directors’ opinion, there was no
indication of deterioration in the collectability
of the loans receivable and thus no allowance
was considered necessary.
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2010 2009
—F-TF "—TTINF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT FHE T
R (ffata) 20,586 -
660 -
21,246 -
(21,246) -
Bt -

(@) RBEHERE  ERERIZE
EEFMENF12%E15%ET 2

k2R —EFERDIH o

(b) % 101872 7T (#76,800,0007% 7T
EERTAEB=FBIALT

(0 BEXRREWHKBETAETTEHE
#3018 ¥ 7T (485 5220,500,000
BIT) °

EEZN2EERABEEEELR
BREZEEHRKEFTNBEHE
SR 2 ° M O 1 B Bl (E AP - B
ERA - LEBKERAKE LS
2B At BREFEDE
o
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OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits for investments KE®RE

Prepayments and deposits BENFEEREEZS

paid
Others H Aty

The directors consider that the carrying amount
of other receivables approximately their fair

value.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

Bank deposits RITHE
Cash in hand FHEAS

The effective interest rates of the deposits
range from 0.01% to 0.05% (2009: 0.01%
to 1.88%) per annum and all of them have
a maturity within three months from initial

inception.

19. Rt B RE » BERTHE
R IE

2010 2009
—F-FF Z—TTILF
HKS$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TR THAT

- 2,700

1,566 408

- 1

1,566 3,109

EERpEMERUREBEZEHESR
HRAFEERS -

20 RITEERRE
2010 2009
—B-%2F —TTHHF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH Fi
866 22
2 .
868 22

FRZEBAMENFFL20.01%
£0.05% (ZZEZNLF :0.01%=
1.88%) ' MAABEFHRHIHEBRER
FBEF=1E A B/ -

ZHBEBREAERLX2FIZFT - 2 F K
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Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

21. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 21. AR E S

On 17 June 2009, the Company issued 12%
coupon convertible bonds due on 17 June
2012 in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 with a conversion price of
HK$1.60 per ordinary share of HK$0.20 (subject
to adjustment) of the Company.

The fair values of the liability component and
equity conversion component were determined
upon the issuance of the convertible bonds.

The fair value of the liability component,
included in non-current liabilities, was
calculated based on the estimated discounted
cash flow over the remaining contractual
terms of the convertible bonds and discounted
using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond. The discounted rate of
the liabilities component of the convertible
bonds was approximately 33.6%. The residual
amount, representing the value of equity
conversion component, was included in the
shareholders’ equity under “convertible bonds
equity reserve”.

The convertible bonds recognised in the
statement of financial position were calculated
as follows:

RZZEZENRFARA+TLEH KRA
1T 2 7N & %8 £40,000,0007% T -
BR-ZZFE—Z—FA+tBEH:
FHERBI12% 2 JHRBES - S
BERERAARETREME208 T
2 Em1.60% T (] TUAFAE) -

BEHSS RERER E‘BﬁZ’&i@
RETARRESKRETE °

BEB AT EGIAERB A
ﬁ)EEFT?ﬁHﬂ FHRTAHHIR
REFEFNEBREZR TS X
MRz EAMBREREREAE -7
BREFZCBEID ZWHBEERNE
33.6% ° FItREBE BENERER
Mo 2 EBE) AT REESED
] Tz PR as

P B AR O R A RERR 2 BT AR (B 5
SHEMT

2010

—E-ZF

HK$' 000

FERT

Proceeds of issue % ﬁﬁﬁ?%?ﬁ( 40,000

Equity component 1 75 #B17 (13,370)

Liability component at date RETHEZABEISH

of issue 26,630

Interest charged PR H 6,319

Interest paid EATFE (3,787)
Liability component R_E—ZTF=ZA=+—HzZAEBEIXH

at 31 March 2010 29,162
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

21. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Interest on the convertible bonds is calculated
on the effective yield basis by applying the
effective interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond to the liability component of

the convertible bonds.

The liability component is measured at
amortised cost. The interest expense for
the year of HK$6,319,000 is calculated by
applying an effective interest rate of 29.47%
to the liability component. Interest paid in the
current year since issue is HK$3,787,000. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the liability component at the date of issue
of HK$26,630,000 and the amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March 2010 of HK$29,162,000
represents the effective interest less interest
paid to that date.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
convertible bonds, so long as any bond remains
outstanding, the Company will not create
or permit to subsist any mortgage, charge,
pledge, lien or other form of encumbrance or
security interest upon the whole or any part
of its undertaking, assets or revenues, present
or future, to secure, guarantee or indemnify in
respect of any present or future indebtedness
of the Company other than loans from banks
or licensed or registered financial institutions
unless, at the same time or prior thereto, the
Company’s obligation under the bonds (a) are
secured equally and ratably therewith or benefit
from a guarantee or indemnity in substantially
identical terms thereto, as the case may be
or (b) have the benefit of such other security,
guarantee, indemnity or other arrangement as
the bondholders shall approve by an ordinary

resolution.

21. AR E S (&

AR BE 5 K B 75 2 A A R R 1R 55
BEAD 2 FEFATRRESER

MEZERDREREESE o

BERNMDABEKARGTE - FAF
B ¥6,319,0008 T HIZ R AE
BHORBERAME29.47%:tE -
BETARRAEEENFER
3,787,000/ 7T - BEEMH N EITH
Hi 7 BR H {826,630,0007% T 81 — =
—ZTFE=ZA=Z+—BZHEATBHRK
3K BT S 2 & $829,162,000/% 7T
CEREBEERMNERBEZBEN
P& o

R AT 48 B B 55 2 IR S AR - R
REMBEFHARTE  XAEH A
G Y EL IR B 3 R R 2 & HB K AT ] &P
MEXR BEIBWERIKAFF
EEMRE - W EH HEHR
SEMEA  ERAEERER
A - ERKBERE AR R RME
AERES SRR Z EIR (RITHIFHE K
At BEE 2 ERRIN) - R A
IR Al ARRREFER
Z B R EE MR Pl sk A HE R
Z M 25 3 1R KA B AR R 2 B R &
(ARIF I E ) 1B 30 K(b) B A B 55
REANEBRERILEZZFTH
fE W ER BERIHEME
BEZ R ZRERIN ©

ZHBEBREAERLX2FIZFT - 2 F K
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Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

22.SHARE CAPITAL 22. g 7R

Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2008 and RZZEZNFEA—BK
31 March 2009 —EEANF=RA=1+—H
Increase in authorised share ETERAR 2 0 (fita)
capital (note a)
At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE—FF=A=+—H
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE:
At 1 April 2008 and RZZEZNFHA-BR
31 March 2009 —EEAF=ZA=+—H
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBR(H2D)
(note b)
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE—ZF=A=+—H
Notes:

(@ On 24 April 2009, the Company’s share
capital was increased from HK$10,000,000 to
HK$100,000,000 by the creation of additional
450,000,000 shares of HK$0.2 each.

(b) On 3 June 2009, the Company issued 4,208,460
new shares of HK$0.2 each at HK$1.0 per
share.
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Number of

ordinary shares of

HK$0.2 each HK$' 000
BREE2ETZ
EBRHA TET
50,000,000 10,000
450,000,000 90,000
500,000,000 100,000
21,042,300 4,209
4,208,460 841
25,250,760 5,050
Bt -

(a)

(b)

RZZEZEAFNMNA=-_+TAH -
#4% =8 450,000,0000% 5 i & &
028 L2l ARRIRAR
10,000,000 7T 3% % 100,000,000
B IT ©

—ETAESA=H ' AAQAF
f%1.07% JT % 174,208,4600%
SFRMEE0.2/ T2 ¥ D -
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Year ended 31 March 2010 #Z=—Z—ZF=A=+—HLFE
23. RESERVES 23. 15
Equity
[nvestment component of

Share  revaluation Warrant ~ convertible ~ Exchange ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve bonds reserve losses Total
ke ARER TERES
RHkE  EffRE fiff 2BEEH  EXRE  ZiER it
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK§'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK§"000
Tin Thn Tin Thn T Thn Thn

At 31 March 2008 RIBTNEZA=T-8 79865 (368) - - - (163 4,845
Issue of unlisted warrant Bk LmARER - - 842 - - - 8
Other comprehensive income ~~ Zt2EHE - 87) - - - = 87)
Loss for the year KEEGE - - - - - (5,091) (5,091)
At 31 March 2009 RZFENFZA=T-B 79865 (455) 842 - - (19,723) 509
Issue of shares ik 3367 - - - - = 3367
Shares issue expenses OEE b ) = = = = = )
Recognition of equity component 7 A E%

of convertible bonds ZEEIR - - - 13,370 - = 13,370
Other comprehensive income ~~ E 2 E4E - - - = 3725 = 3705
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - 5797 (5,79)

At 31 March 2010 RZZ-FEZF=t-B 25 (455) 842 13370 3725 (105,520)  (4,833)
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24. WARRANTS

25.

The Company has a total of 4,208,460

warrants outstanding at 31 March 2010 and its

movement is as follows:

Issued
Outstanding during
Date of grant at 1/4/2009 the year
R-BBNE
A-H
RHAM HATH  FRERT
6 February 2009 4,208,460 =

—ETNF_ARA

Note:

On 6 February 2009, the Company placed a total
of 4,208,460 unlisted warrants (“Warrants”) to
certain independent third parties at an issue price
of HK$1.00 each. No Warrants has been exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2010.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Net asset value per share is calculated by
dividing the net assets included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
of approximately HK$217,000 (2009:
HK$4,718,000) and the number of ordinary
shares in issue as at 31 March 2010, being
25,250,760 (2009: 21,042,300).

Exercised/
lapsed during
the year

T/ %%

24. AR EE

R-ZE—ZFF=A=+—H AR
alA £ H4,208,46015 H AR ITE 2 3R

PerEss - HEFHMT :
Outstanding Exercise price
at 31/3/2010 Exercise period per share
R-2-BF
ZR=1-H
ESNd TR BRARE
4,208,460 6 February 2009 to HK$1.00
5 February 2012
“ZENF-ARR 10087
BIT—-F
“ARR
iz
RZZEZNEF_ARNA  ARARE
M1.00E T2 BTERE TELE=
7 B & & $£4,208,46019 3 £ T R A4
F(RBREF]) REBEEZZ—ZF
ZA=T—BHILFE UEIREE
BT o
5. BREERE

BREEFENR ARG TE
M3k 2 B EF{EX217,000% 7T
(ZZEZT N : 4,718,000/ T) K
WR-_E—ZTF=-ZA=+—RH2
B 17T &R AR 8125,250,760%
(ZZ T AF : 21,042,300/R) &t

s
H o
==
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Year ended 31 March 2010 #Z=—Z—ZF=A=+—HLFE
26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 BEEALTRS
(@) Compensation of key management (@) FZ2EBRAB (BEESEREM
personnel, including the directors and FTEEBAB)FAMSEIIM
other members of key management, T

during the year is as follows:

2010 2009
—E-Z5F —EThF
HKS$'000 HK$' 000
FHBT FET
Salaries, allowances and M - JEBE M B FIZS
benefits in kind 3,295 610
Contributions to BESFTEIMHERK
Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme - =
3,295 610
Further details of directors’ emoluments EEME 2E —FFBEHNEK
are included in note 14 to the consolidated A BRI 14 -
financial statements.
(b) The investment manager was remunerated (b) BEFEEZEZREETERE
based on their respective investment SFEREEEE AEABLN

management agreement as follows: T

2010
—2-2F
HK$’ 000
TER
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Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(b) (continued)
Note:

The Company and United Gain entered
into an investment management agreement
for appointing United Gain as investment
manager of the Group. The annual investment
management fee is equivalent to the higher of
HK$100,000 or 1.25% of the Group’s net asset
value, provided that such annual fee shall not
exceed HK$600,000.

27.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has participated in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustee. Under the scheme, each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees
makes monthly contributions to the Scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. The contributions from each of
the employer and employees are subject to a
maximum contribution of HK$1,000 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary. No
forfeited contribution is available to reduce the

contributions payable in the future years.

The total contributions charged to the
consolidated income statement amounted to
HK$33,000 (2009: approximately HK$Nil),
representing contributions payable to the
Scheme by the Group in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2010.
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26.EAETRE (&)

(b) (%)
Hiaz -

AARERBFIZREER
BHEAEZEBBRAEERR
ERE -RETEEBEESFE
AR 100,000/ Tk A &
BE&EEFE21.25% (ARE
ERE) HEEBRFEERT
15 #838600,0007% JT °

27. RIRERIFH 2

AREBZRBARHIMERTES
1§‘J7%Ffr7ﬁ/*\’éf$“%i
BHRBRHMERTESHE
gl - ;m%uz&F Z¥IN
BEDH BHEFAZSZES
A -REZE A58 (E
ERHEERARREBZH
B(EERANMELE S IK
1) 25%% A [7 % &t & 1F H
K- BERRBESBZEARR
A8 A1,0008 7T 1R Z R
B B FE o 3 MR U R PR A 2k
FRAZHK -
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28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 8. EEHERE
During the year, the Group had leased certain FAAEBERBTAIHE 2 L2
of its office premises and motor vehicles under MEZHHEAETHAEMERA
non-cancelable operating lease arrangements B HeBE  FHFHAME -

and rentals are fixed for an average term of

two years.

2010 2009
—E-BF —TENF
HK$’' 000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Minimum lease payments HARBLEENE N
paid under operating 2w K & HIE
leases during the period:
Office premises WREYHE 1,011 1,672
Motor vehicles E 665 -
1,676 1,672
At the end of reporting period, the Group R HA A R ZK’EIWJFTT
had commitments for future minimum lease BEgEHE 2 A EHE K
payments under non-cancellable operating R
leases which fall due as follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT AT
Within one year —F R 1,306 912
In the second to fifth year E_FEFRAFA
inclusive (BIEEEMF) 370 760
1,676 1,672

ZHBEBREAERLX2FIZFT - 2 F K
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Year ended 31 March 2010 8= —ZF=F=+—HIFE

29. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current assets
Property, plant and
equipment
Available-for-sale financial
assets
Investment in subsidiaries
(note a)

Current assets

Financial assets held for
trading

Amount due from
subsidiaries (note b)

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities
Other payables and
accrued charges
Amount due to a
subsidiary (note b)

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Convertible bonds

Net assets
Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves (note ¢)

Total equity

ERBEE
ME - BEREE

AHEMBEE

REBRRZIRE
(Ktita)

RBEE
RIEEEMBEE

JRE WK BfY /B8 1 ) SR IR
(Ktizb)

H A WA - RE
N IB IR
RITERLAS

REBAE
H A & 5A S JEST B A

F& 5 — &t /B8 2 Rl 5k IR
(Ktith)

RBEEFRE

FRBEE
AR 25

EEFE
BXKMHE
(&N
&t (H7 iz c)
EREE
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29. K AR 2 M B E R

2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETAF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR FET
721 95
1,537 1,537
2,258 1,632
- 478
31,665 -
634 3,109
829 22
33,128 3,609
1,205 523
4,809 -
6,014 523
27,114 3,086
29,162 -
210 4,718
5,050 4,209
(4,840) 509
210 4,718
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Year ended 31 March 2010 2= —ZSF=A=1+—HIEFE

COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

MELRER

Directly held:

Asia Light Limited

Temujin Strategic

Investment Il Limited

Indirectly held:

Temujin Investments

Korea Co., Limited

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries

Place of

incorporation

o fR R 34 B

E#BR:

Hong Kong

&t

British Virgin Islands
AEBRAHS

HEEA:

The Republic of Korea
5

Issued and fully
paid up capital
BRTRBRREFE

KRWS, 745,000,000
5,745,000,000& 7T

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and

had no fixed repayment term.

wiat -

(a) MEA

=

29. A RTFZHMBER (&

R-Z—ZF=ZA=+—-8" K
BRAIFBEQAT

Interest held

CLLE

2010 2009
—g-8% —220E
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% =

(b)

Principal activities

IERE

Investment holding
REERK
Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERE

FEW, /4 BB 2 B 2 KR

ZERRTEER - 28 R E

Z HEBKREARAL

R o
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29. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 29. K RE 2B EER (&

COMPANY (continued)

Notes: (continued) Bt - (48)
(c) Reserves (c) &
Equity
Investment component of
Share revaluation Warrant  convertible Accumulated
premium reserve reserve bonds losses Total
REEf AREER TERES
R EE 1 fie 2RENG  RHER @t
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000
THT THL THL THT THL T
At 31 March 2008 RZZZ\E=A=1—H 79,845 (368) - - (74,632) 4,845
Issue of unlisted warrant Bk EmARER - - 842 - - 842
Other comprehensive income  E i 2 EMA - (87) - - = (87)
Loss for the year rEEHE - - - - (5,091) (5,091)
At 31 March 2009 RZZENF=R=1—H 79,845 (455) 842 - (79,723) 509
Issue of shares BB 3,367 - - - - 3,367
Shares issue expenses RipE1TER (7) = = = = {7)
Recognition of equity BRUSRRES B
component of convertible ~ Zf3
bonds - - - 13,370 - 13,370
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (22,079) (22,079)
At 31 March 2010 R=Z-FF=A=1-H 83,205 (455) 842 13,370 (101,802) (4,840)

Under the Companies Law (revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and a statutory
solvency test. It is provided that a dividend
cannot be paid if this would result in the
Company being unable to pay its debts as they
fall due. In accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to Nil (2009: approximately
HK$122,000).
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BERSHSNRE (KIBET) $22
B ARBIZROEEAHRAES
RNORIBRETRR - EERE
NECIWA/NCIFEE 3R W DS E U
REFEEERE DA - ZBAHBRTE
WMARRRIREREEGEEIM
HEE TABIRERS - BE
RRBZHEBERMAA  ARAFW
BAIHHYRTRREZEE(ZZETN
& 1 49122,00087C) °
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Year ended 31 March 2010 #Z=—Z—ZF=A=+—HLFE

30. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

31.

On 3 May 2010, 5,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.2 each were issued at HK$1.6 per share
on the conversion of the Company’s convertible
bonds by its bondholders.

COMPARATIVES FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been

reclassified to conform with current year’s

presentation.

30. REHIREE

31.

RZZE—ZFRA=ZB REFA
ERAQRNBAIRKRESE - NAF
VA 8 8 1.6/% 7T % 175,000,000/8 &
AREE0. 2 T 2 #T R D ©

BT
ETLBRBRFELEN D EUA
ARFEZ2HRAH -




RESULTS
Revenue

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss attributable
to shareholders

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Shareholder’ funds

&
LON

BHAER
HE

R B

BERAR
FRBEE
RYEE
RBAE
FRBAR

BREAS

Year ended 31 March

HE=A=1-HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ZE-FFf —TTNF  —ZEN\E ZETHF LT NE
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TERL THL FHL TEL TAT
2,421 1 44 65 38
(25,797) (5,091) (18,920) (9,396) (1,478)
- = = (100) =
(25,797) (5,091) (18,920) (9,496) (1,478)
At 31 March
R=B=t+-H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ZE-BF C"TTHNF CZTE\& CZEBTt§ CZETRE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR FEL FEL FETL TEL
8,153 1,632 1,747 3,163 15,066
23,680 3,609 7,423 17,442 6,915
(2,454) (523) (116) (1,431) (908)
(29,162) - - - -
217 4718 9,054 19,174 21,073
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